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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

1. Overview of Goldis Berhad (“Goldis” or “the Company”)

 The principal activities of the Company are those of investment holding and the provision of management services. The principal 
activities of the Group consist mainly of property investment and management, owner and operator of malls, hotel operations, 
property development, construction, information and communication technology services, the provision of engineering services 
for water treatment plants and related services, education, investment holding and management of a real estate investment trust. 
Today, we have private equity investments in Malaysia and China and through our subsidiary IGB Corporation Berhad (“IGB”), have a 
footprint that spans across Asia, Australia, the United States and Europe. 

2. Delivering Sustained Results

 A slowdown in growth, rising costs of living, low oil and gas prices and a ringgit that remained weak, continued to weigh on the 
Malaysian economy in 2016. This was further impacted by global developments, in particular, the United Kingdom’s vote to exit the 
European Union (“Brexit”) and a change of President in the United States of America, both of which contributed to market volatility 
and increased global economic uncertainty. 

 Against this backdrop, companies in Malaysia continued to review their operations, with many, particularly in the oil and gas sector, 
downsizing their presence. Additionally, with Malaysians experiencing a rise in the cost of living, weaker job prospects and a reduction 
in purchasing power, consumer sentiment remained low, with many consumers reining in spending. 

 Despite this, Goldis delivered sustained results and pushed ahead with new initiatives, remaining focused on driving sustainability in 
our business and creating long-term value for our shareholders.

3. Key Financial Highlights
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont’d)
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Financial year ended Jan-13* Dec-13^ Dec-14 Dec-15 Dec-16

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revenue#  1,268,792  1,114,871  1,291,302  1,278,218  1,255,473 
#  415,914  408,413  450,191  390,379 482,908

Taxation#  (153,951)  (103,634)  (102,782)  (103,486)  (83,022)

 261,963  304,779  347,409  286,893 399,886

 99,346  100,667  102,165  109,105 165,027

Capital and reserves attributable to equity holders/
Net Assets  1,547,172  1,653,014  1,916,057  2,437,881 2,551,886

EPS (RM)  0.16  0.17  0.17  0.18 0.27

Net Assets per share (RM)  2.64  2.80  3.15  4.01 4.20

Total borrowings 1,889,646  1,748,466  3,889,364  3,688,080 3,317,854

Net debt& 0  563,312  2,634,578  2,547,459 2,266,555

Total equity 5,060,184  4,589,807  3,167,277  3,685,885 3,851,266

Net Gearing (times)  -    0.12  0.83  0.69  0.59 

 # 

 

FY2015 was mainly due to the completion and handing over of the 468 units of service apartments at G Residence in March 2015, 

These decreases were mitigated by higher contributions from other operating divisions. Notably, the Property Investment (Retail) 
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5.00

4.00

3.00

2.00

1.00

0
Jan-13 Dec-13 Dec-14 Dec-15 Dec-16

NET ASSETS PER SHARE (RM)



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont’d)

4. Operations Overview

 Property Development Segment

 2016 was a challenging year for the property development division as the rising costs of living, weaker job prospects, more stringent bank 
lending policies, and general economic uncertainty, led many potential buyers to hold off on purchasing new properties. We have therefore 
been extremely conservative. This year, we completed 2 developments - Three28 Tun Razak, a boutique development with 166 units located 
on Jalan Tun Razak, and Park Manor, a development comprising 41 villas located in the award winning Sierramas residential estate. Take up 

- Stonor 3, a collection of 400 luxury curated homes located in the heart of KLCC, which was launched this year, and Damai Residence, a 
boutique, luxury, residential offering comprising 31 family-sized homes. 

 We are proud that IGB was ranked amongst the top 10 developers once again in The Edge Malaysia’s Top Property Developers’ Award. This 
marks the fourteenth consecutive year that IGB have been an award recipient. 

 Hotel Segment

 The hotel division posted positive growth in FY2016, bolstered by the performance of four hotels which opened in 2015, namely Cititel 
Express Ipoh, Cititel Express Penang, The Wembley Penang, and The Tank Stream Sydney. This was in spite of a generally challenging year 
for the hospitality industry, which saw a reduction in the volume of travel, entertainment and meetings, as many companies, particularly 
those in the oil and gas sector, downsized their operations in Malaysia and cut costs. Additionally, with Malaysian Airlines withdrawing 

 To address these challenges, we adopted a more aggressive approach to marketing and sought to better manage our costs. For example, 

implemented an energy savings programme among other initiatives. 

Apartments, Yangon. 

 We expect 2017 to continue to be challenging, particularly if the Government goes ahead to implement the Service Charge Top Up and the 
proposed Tourism Service Fee which will result in an increase in cost pressure. We anticipate seeing a slight improvement in visitor numbers 
as a result of a weak ringgit, improved connectivity between China and Malaysia and the easing of the visa process for tourists from China 
and India. 

 Property Investment and Management, Commercial Segment

GTower was particularly impacted by companies in the oil and gas industry downsizing their operations in Malaysia, as these companies 

 This year, we remained focused on enhancing customer service, the environment within our buildings and attracting new tenants. We offered 
a range of incentives such as longer rent free periods, worked to secure longer term tenancies across a range of businesses and industries 
and ensured top notch security, cleanliness and maintenance. 

 In the new year, we will work to strengthen our management team so that they are better able to support our business objectives. We are 

assets in 2017. 

 Property Investment and Management, Retail Segment

 Despite a slight improvement in consumer sentiment in 2016, the retail market remained challenging as new malls opened in the Klang 

through carrying out asset enhancement initiatives (“AEI”) to improve the shopper experience and shopping ambience and bringing in new 
brands to keep the tenant mix fresh and on trend.

Lalique, Kens Apothecary and Bowers & Wilkins, were introduced. A new premium area, Les Suites at TGM, also made its debut this year. 
The area, which is a one-stop destination for customers looking to plan a wedding, houses The Occasions Eventeur, Mun Keat Photography, 
Celest Thoi and The Studio, a multi-brand store featuring local and ASEAN designer. 

growth, IGB REIT is well positioned to weather the challenges ahead and continue to create value for all its stakeholders. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont’d)

 Construction

 (a) Mid Valley City Southpoint (Parcel 3)

development has a Gross Floor Area of 2.2 million square feet. 

  Construction works are still ongoing, with the 55-storey structure anticipated to top out by July 2017. A decision last year to convert 

Order (D.O.). The amended D.O. is currently awaiting approval from the authorities. 

the second quarter of 2018.

 (b) Mid Valley Southkey

scheduled for completion in late 2018.

  An amendment to the approved D.O. rationalising the 33-acre development from a single parcel into two parcels is currently under 

lettable area of 1.5 million square feet. The mall is targeted to open its doors to the public at the end of 2018. 

 (c) Pangkor Island Resort

  The Pangkor Island Resort is undergoing redevelopment work, and will be converted into 68 luxury villas with 5-star amenities. A 
D.O. from the local authorities has been obtained, and an application for the amalgamation of land titles is currently pending approval. 
Submission of our building plans will be made once the issuance of a new land title is obtained. Subject to these being received, 
construction work for the resort will commence in 2017.

 Other Operating Segments

 Water Treatment in China

 The China Water Group currently operates in Jiangsu Province Ganyu, Shandong Province Yantai and Zoucheng, China. Our principal 
activities include the management, operations and maintenance of waste water treatment plants for concession periods ranging from 23 to 
25 years. 

 Our main challenges this year have been attracting and retaining talent with the right skillsets for our business and managing revisions in 
water tariffs to better manage increasing operating costs. To address these challenges, we will monitor water tariffs periodically and work 
closely with the local authorities to ensure that tariffs are adjusted in a timely manner in line with increasing costs. We will also review our 
remuneration packages to ensure that they remain competitive and continue to enhance both the working environment and culture so as to 
support the continued growth and development of key management personnel. Additionally, we will be broadening our search for new talent 

trial run for the Zoucheng upgrade project. Revisions to the water tariffs for select plants are also expected in the coming year, pending 
approval from the local authorities. 

 Education

 International schools, including IGB International School (“IGBIS”), have not been spared from the challenging economic environment as 

year. The school therefore stepped up its marketing efforts this year to reach out to a broader pool of families as well as to increase brand 
awareness. 

 Initiatives were carried out to both attract new students to the school as well as build loyalty amongst existing students and their families.  
For example, IGBIS started offering scholarships to new students transferring to IGBIS from other schools in Malaysia and offered discounts 
to those who enrolled with the school on Open Days held. It also introduced a two tiered fee structure to pioneer families to encourage them 
to continue with IGBIS and enrol siblings of pioneer students at the school as well. Fees for the Early Years Programme were also frozen and 
3 and 5 year loyalty discounts applicable to families who stay with the school were introduced.

students who took the examinations passed, achieving an average score of 34 points out of 45 (the worldwide average is 29 points), with 

headroom for growth and is well-positioned to take advantage of the potential market available. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont’d)

 Healthcare

 2016 saw the soft launch of Elements Medical Fitness Sdn Bhd (fka Elements Gym Sdn Bhd) (“Elements Medical Fitness”), Malaysia’s First 
Integrated Medical Fitness Centre with professionally administered well-being programmes. Since our launch, we have received positive 
response from the public. Take up of our programmes however have been slow as consumers reined in their spending on the back of slower 
economic growth, weaker job prospects and rising costs of living. Moreover, as a business offering a new lifestyle concept, we have had 

programmes in the market. 

 To address these challenges, we have focused our marketing efforts on the corporate wellness segments and have formed strategic alliances 
and partnerships with other organisations in the healthcare industry. Additionally, we have worked to ensure that clients who do sign up 

programmes.

ahead, we will attract an increasing number of clients. 

 IT & Data Analyst

 It has been a tough year for our businesses in IT and data analytics. Macro Lynx Sdn Bhd (“Macro Lynx”) has seen increased margin 
pressure as a result of ongoing broadband price wars and rising costs. Additionally, with a slowdown in the economy, occupancies of the 
buildings we cover have dropped and the number of new sign ups have also been slow. 

 To address these challenges, we worked hard to ensure that we continue to provide excellent service both in terms of customer service 
support and operationally, providing continuous network improvements and ensuring that our customers receive uninterrupted service. We 
also developed new products which allowed us to penetrate the SME segment and developed technology partnerships to support our pursuit 
of providing a wide range of connectivity options and robust business continuity solutions. 

 We believe that as we continue to enhance our service offerings, introduce new streams of business and penetrate new market segments, we 
will be able to grow our business sustainably.

 This year, AFMS Solutions Sdn Bhd kicked off its operations following its establishment in 2015. We are in the business of providing 

business solutions using big data analytics to improve people, processes and systems. As a new business, we worked to raise awareness 

 The main challenges we faced were obtaining stakeholder buy in from potential clients and, once engaged, managing the availability of 
information needed to do our job.

 Moving forward, as we continue to expand our business, we will be focusing on extending our marketing efforts to penetrate new markets, 
considering strategic partnerships to enable us to launch new products and enhancing the experience that clients have with us.

 New Ventures

 18@Medini, a mixed development in Iskandar Malaysia, Johor Bahru, remains under re-evaluation pending an improvement in market 
conditions.

 In Thailand, we remain committed to developing a mixed-use project with our joint venture partners, the Immortal Group Co Ltd and are 

River.

 We have submitted our plans for our mixed-use development project in London – Blackfriars and expect to obtain consent from the 
authorities this year. We are working towards launching the project at the end of 2017.

5. Risk Management

 The Board of Goldis is responsible for overseeing and maintaining a sound system of internal controls and risk management so as to 
safeguard shareholder investments and the assets of the Group. We recognise that doing so is a fundamental requirement for our continued 
growth and that risk management is not about completely eliminating risk, but about managing it in a manner that allows for the Group to 
achieve its business objectives. 

 (a) Market Risk

performance. In order to mitigate this, we hold a diverse portfolio of assets across geographies and industries and have adopted a 

as well as assess the implication of global developments on their performance and strategies. These factors may then impact their 
investment and strategic objectives. 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont’d)

  (i) Foreign currency exchange risk

   Currency risks arise as a result of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the functional currency. 

   The Group and the Company are exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of advances from and to subsidiaries, associates, 
as well as joint ventures. We are also exposed through the deposits and borrowings we have with licensed banks. To manage 

  (ii) Cash flow interest rate risk

   Our interest rate exposure is correlated with changes in the cost of funds (“COF”) of our lenders and is part of the inherent 
risks associated with carrying on a business as a going concern. Management closely monitors our exposure and works to 

of creating value for our stakeholders. 

 (b) Competition Risk

  The Group faces ever-growing competition, both from established players as well as new entrants seeking to gain a foothold in 
the industry and grow their market share. In this environment, our businesses adopt a rigorous approach to strengthening their 
competitiveness through constantly monitoring the market, enhancing their offerings, bringing a fresh perspective to established 
industries and innovating to stay ahead of the curve. 

  Macro Lynx for example, has experienced intense competition from next generation high speed broadband players which has caused 
a price war, driven players in the industry to introduce new and innovative products and created a market whereby customers expect 
only the best service and quality offerings. Undoubtedly, these factors have served to push the industry forward but it has also meant 
that we must have a constant ear to the ground, regularly realign our packages to meet evolving market circumstances and consumer 
demands, enhance our customer service and diversify our product offerings in order to remain competitive. 

 (c) Human Capital Risk

  Central to our success is our people. As such, continuing to attract and retain talent continues to be a priority. We remain committed 
to being an employer of choice and invest in the skills of our existing workforce, providing them with ample opportunities to grow. We 

balance and encouraging a healthy lifestyle. The Group also works hard to cultivate a positive work culture that promotes diversity, 
professionalism and respect. 

  Succession planning is critical to ensure the continuity of our business in the long run. We therefore actively identify individuals with 
the potential to take on more responsibilities and play a larger part in driving our business forward. We ensure that these individuals 
are given the support and exposure needed to grow into ever larger roles within the business. 

 (d) Regulatory & Compliance Risk

  The Group is subject to the laws and regulations of the markets in which we operate. In order to ensure that we are both up to date 
and in compliance with new regulatory developments, we have in place a robust framework which allows us to monitor ongoing 
discussions and changes, assess the impact to the Group, and communicate these changes in a timely manner so that the affected 
businesses can take the necessary steps to embed them into their operations. 

 (e) Information Technology (“IT”) Risk

  Our businesses and operations rely to varying degrees on IT. With cybersecurity threats on the rise around the world, we are exposed 
to the risk of cyber-attacks that can cause disruptions to our operations. To mitigate these threats, our IT departments have an 
established framework to manage IT security risks and have worked to ensure that there are relevant preventive, detective and 
recovery measures in place. Additionally, we review all IT policies and procedures regularly to ensure that they are up to date and 
provide the greatest level of protection for our people and business, and have in place an IT Disaster Recovery Plan.

 (f) Terrorist Threat

  The frequency of reported terrorist attacks have increased around the world, imposing an urgent need for businesses to be prepared 
for such eventualities. The Group has therefore worked to heighten security across all our buildings and works closely with the 
authorities to keep up to date on any potential threats. We also have crisis management plans in place as well as a team of personnel 
who have been trained to respond to such circumstances.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (cont’d)

 (g) Malpractice Risk

  Elements Medical Fitness is Malaysia’s First Integrated Medical Fitness Centre. Our team of professionals take their jobs and 

the healthcare industry, the risk of malpractice lawsuits stemming from incorrect diagnoses, treatments, or adverse reactions to 

ensuring that we take the time to fully understand the unique circumstances of our patients so that we can obtain detailed medical 

required. Any diagnosis is then based on the test results received from these laboratories. We also refer all high risk patients to 
external conventional diagnostic centres.

 (h) Credit risk

  Credit risk arises when sales are made on deferred credit terms. 

  The Group and the Company control these risks by the application of credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. To minimise 
our credit risk, we ensure that we only work with business partners with high credit worthiness. Trade receivables are monitored on 

  The credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are substantially amounts due from customers with 
a good collection track record with us and management closely monitors any trade receivables that are past due. As a result, no 
additional credit risk beyond amounts allowed for collection losses is inherent in the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables. 

 (i) Price Risk

the limits set by the Group. As such, our exposure to price risk is minimal. 

 (j) Liquidity and cash flow risk

of cash or cash convertible investments to meet its working capital requirements. In addition, the Group strives to maintain available 
banking facilities of a reasonable level to its overall debt position. 

portfolio with some short term funding so as to achieve overall cost effectiveness. As at 31 December 2016, the Group held cash and 

Southkey. As we push ahead with ongoing projects, additional funding may be needed. 

 (k) Capital Risk Management

  The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new 
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. 

6. Moving Forward Sustainably and with Confidence

 2017 is expected to be another challenging year, particularly as economies around the world grapple with the emerging political and 

rising costs and a ringgit that is unlikely to see a strong rebound in the near future. These factors will weigh on consumer sentiment and 
contribute to weakening employment prospects, as companies continue to downsize their operations here.

 Businesses across the board are likely to be impacted by these developments and Goldis is no different. We believe however that with our 

continue to create and deliver sustainable value for our shareholders. 
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NOTICE OF THE SEVENTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

As Ordinary Business
1.

with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.
Please refer to Note (a)

2.
2016.

Ordinary Resolution 1

3.
until the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Ordinary Resolution 2
Please refer to Note (b)

4. To re-elect the following Directors who retire by rotation in accordance with Article 98 of the 

(a) Dato’ Seri Robert Tan Chung Meng Ordinary Resolution 3
(b) Ordinary Resolution 4

5.
remuneration.

Ordinary Resolution 5

As Special Business

6.

(a) Datuk Tan Kim Leong Ordinary Resolution 6
Please refer to Note (c)

(b) Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah Ordinary Resolution 7
Please refer to Note (c)

      
7. Authority to Allot Shares Pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2016

That pursuant to Sections 75 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2016, the Articles of Association of the 
Company, approval from Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and any other governmental/regulatory 
authorities, the Directors be and are hereby authorised to allot shares in the Company at any time 
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting and upon such terms and conditions and for 

shares of the Company for the time being and that the Directors be and are also empowered to obtain 
the approval for the listing and quotation for the additional shares so issued on Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad.

Ordinary Resolution 8
Please refer to Note (d)

8. Proposed Renewal of Shareholders’ Mandate for the Company to Purchase its Own Shares 
(“Proposed Share Buy-Back”)

That subject to the provisions under the Companies Act, 2016, the Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, the Listing Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa 
Securities”) and the approvals of all relevant authorities (if any), the Company be and is hereby 
authorised, to the extent permitted by law, to purchase and/or hold such number of its own ordinary 
shares (“Goldis Shares”) as may be determined by the Directors of the Company from time to 

expedient in the interest of the Company provided that the aggregate number of shares purchased 

shares of the Company at the time of purchase;

Ordinary Resolution 9
Please refer to Note (e)
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 (cont’d)

That the maximum amount of funds to be utilised for the purpose of the Proposed Share Buy-Back 

That the Directors of the Company may decide either to retain the shares purchased as treasury 
shares or cancel the shares or retain part of the shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel 
the remainder or to resell the shares or distribute the shares as dividends or to deal with the treasury 
shares in the manner allowed by the Companies Act, 2016;

That the authority conferred by this resolution will be effective immediately from the passing of this 

(a) the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company following the Annual 
General Meeting at which this resolution is passed, at which time the authority would lapse 
unless renewed by an ordinary resolution, either unconditionally or conditionally; or

(b) the expiration of the period within which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company after 
that date is required by law to be held; or

(c) the authority is revoked or varied by an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the 
Company in a general meeting,

And that the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take such steps to give full 

variations and/or amendments as may be imposed by the relevant authorities and/or to do all such 

9. To transact any other business of which due notice shall have been given.

By Order of the Board

Chow Lai Ping 
(MAICSA 0829388)

Leong Kok Chi   
(MIA 11054)
Company Secretaries  

Kuala Lumpur
28 April 2017

Explanatory Notes 

(a) The Audited Financial Statements is meant for discussion pursuant to the provision of Section 340(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2016. 

estimated amount of meeting allowances is calculated based on the number of scheduled Board, Board Committees and Executive 
Committee meetings from 1 January 2017 until the next Annual General Meeting.

Meeting Allowance
 Independent Director RM2,500 per meeting
 Non-Independent Director RM1,500 per meeting

(c) For proposed Ordinary Resolutions 6 and 7, in line with the Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 2012, the Nomination 
Committee and the Board of Directors had undertaken an annual assessment on the independence of Datuk Tan Kim Leong and Encik 
Daud Mah bin Abdullah who have served for more than nine (9) years and recommended them to continue to act as Independent 
Non-Executive Directors of the Company. Please refer to page 22 as stated in the Statement of Corporate Governance in the 
Company’s Annual Report 2016 for further details.



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)12

 (cont’d)

without any lapse of time. 

(d) The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will renew the mandate to empower the Directors to issue shares in the Company up 

for such purposes as the Directors consider would be in the interest of the Company in order to avoid any delay and costs involved 
in convening a general meeting to approve such an issue of shares. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will 
expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

expansion, investment(s)/acquisition(s) or such other purposes as the Directors consider would be in the interest of the Company. 

 As at the date of this Notice, no new shares in the Company were issued pursuant to the mandate granted to the Directors at the 
Sixteenth Annual General Meeting held on 25 May 2016 and which will lapse at the conclusion of the Seventeenth Annual General 
Meeting (“17th AGM”). 

(e) The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9, if passed, will renew the shareholders’ mandate for the share buy-back by the Company and will 

or varied by the Company at a General Meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting. Further information on the Proposed 
Share Buy-Back is set out in the Statement to Shareholders dated 28 April 2017, which is despatched together with the Annual Report 
of the Company.

their interest in securities are set out on pages 177 and 179 of the Annual Report. 

Notes:

Appointment of Proxy

Registration of Members/Proxies
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TAN LEI CHENG
Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Independent Non-Executive Director

Malaysian, Female, Aged 60

Tan Lei Cheng was appointed a Director of Goldis Berhad (“Goldis” or “the Company”) on 20 September 2000. She was appointed the 

her retirement, she was re-designated as a Non-Executive Chairman and Non-Executive Director of the Company. She was the CEO of Tan 
& Tan Developments Berhad (“Tan & Tan”) a property development company, from March 1995 to August 2003. Tan & Tan is a public 
company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad until the Company took over its listing on 8 May 2002, following the completion of 
the merger between the Company, Tan & Tan and IGB Corporation Berhad (“IGB”). She is the prime mover in identifying and developing 
projects that are in the growth industry sector. She has more than 30 years of experience in the property industry and the corporate sector. 
She holds a Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Melbourne, Australia, and a Bachelor of Law from King’s College, London (LLB 

Organisation, Malaysia Chapter. 

She is a director of IGB, IGB REIT Management Sdn Bhd (“IGBRM”) (the manager of IGB Real Estate Investment Trust) (“IGB REIT”), Tan & 
Tan and Dato’ Tan Chin Nam Foundation.

She is a member of the Remuneration and ESOS Committees.

DATUK TAN KIM LEONG @ TAN CHONG MIN, J.P. 
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian, Male, Aged 77

Chairman of BDO Binder from 1982 to 2009.

Other directorships in public companies include IOI Properties Group Berhad, Amoy Canning Corporation (Malaya) Berhad, Yayasan Tan 
Sri Dato’ Lee Shin Cheng, Ng Teck Fong Foundation, Malaysia-China Business Council, KL Industrial Services Berhad and Gul Technologies 
Singapore Ltd.

Committees.

DAUD MAH BIN ABDULLAH @ MAH SIEW WHYE 
Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian, Male, Aged 55

(Econs) degree from the London School of Economics and Political Science and a Masters in Business Administration majoring in Finance 

the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.

up a boutique fund management company called Kumpulan Sentiasa Cemerlang Sdn Bhd where he is a Director. 

PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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DATO’ SERI ROBERT TAN CHUNG MENG 
Non-Independent Executive Director
Malaysian, Male, Aged 64

development, hotel construction, retail design and development as well as corporate management with more than 30 years of experience in 
the property and hotel industries. After studying Business Administration in the United Kingdom, he was attached to a Chartered Surveyor’s 

with IGB in 1995 when he was the Joint Managing Director and subsequently appointed Group Managing Director in 2001, a position he 
holds today. 

LEE CHAING HUAT
Independent Non-Executive Director
Malaysian, Male, Aged 63

Other directorships in public companies include Sentoria Group Berhad. 

In Goldis Berhad, he is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

TAN BOON LEE
Non-Independent Executive Director
Malaysian, Male, Aged 53

and hospitality projects in Malaysia and Asia. In the 1990’s, he spearheaded IGB Group’s growth into emerging economies of Myanmar and 

PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)



Annual Report  /  2016 15

PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’d)

TAN MEI SIAN
Non-Independent Executive Director
Malaysian, Female, Aged 33

Tan Mei Sian was appointed to the Board of the Company on 18 May 2016. Prior to her appointment to the Board of the Company, she was 
the Alternate Director to Tan Boon Lee for the period from 5 February 2013 to 18 May 2016. She graduated from the London School of 
Economics and Political Science with a Bachelor of Science in Economics. She is the Executive Director of the Company and also a member 
of the Executive Committee of the Company.

Thailand and Australia. She is a member of the Young Presidents' Organisation (YPO).

She is an Alternate Director to Tan Lei Cheng on the Board of Tan & Tan.

DANIEL YONG CHEN-I 
Non-Independent Executive Director
Malaysian, Male, Aged 45

Daniel Yong Chen-I was appointed to the Board of the Company on 8 December 2014. Prior to his appointment to the Board of the 

graduate from the University of Bristol, England.

Management with Wah Seong Engineering Sdn Bhd, the distributor and manufacturer for Toshiba Elevator and Escalator in Malaysia.

Note

(i) any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of the Company save for Tan Lei Cheng, Dato’ Seri Robert Tan 
Chung Meng, Tan Boon Lee, Daniel Yong Chen-I and Tan Mei Sian;
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PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

GOLDIS BERHAD

TAN MEI SIAN 
Director of Corporate and Investment
Malaysian, Female, Aged 33

Directors on page 15. 

LEONG KOK CHI

Malaysian, Male, Aged 50

COLIN NG CHO LENG

Malaysian, Male, Aged 48

RMIT University (Melbourne), Post Graduate Diploma in Finance from Melbourne University (Melbourne) and a Bachelor of Economics from 
Monash University (Melbourne).

being in Goldis, he has spearheaded Corporate Development/Corporate Finance in a number of main board listed companies. 

Note

(i) any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of the Company save for Tan Mei Sian;
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PROFILE OF KEY SENIOR MANAGEMENT

IGB CORPORATION BERHAD (A Principal Subsidiary of Goldis Berhad)

TAN BOON LEE
CEO (Property Development)
Malaysian, Male, Age 53

CHUA SENG YONG
Executive Committee Chairman (Hotel)
Malaysian, Male, Age 54

School of Management, United Kingdom.

the Executive Assistant to the Group Managing Director and the divisional head of procurement, information technology and corporate and 
legal affairs of IGB Group.

DATO’ ERIC LIM HOCK KHENG
Managing Director and CEO (Hotel Management)
Malaysian, Male, Age 66

Management Sdn Bhd, a subsidiary of IGB, in 1996 to spearhead the Cititel brand name and the Group’s hotel properties development of 

ANTONY PATRICK BARRAGRY
CEO (Retail Management)
British/Permanent Resident of Malaysia, Male, Age 65

Centres and The International Real-Estate Federation (“FIABCI”).
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A Principal Subsidiary of Goldis Berhad) (cont’d)

CHAI LAI SIM

Malaysian, Female, Age 56

(“MICPA”).

taxation in property development, commercial and retail property investment and hospitality industries. She began her career as an articled 
student with Coopers & Lybrand (now known as PriceWaterhouseCoopers) before joining Tan & Tan as Group Financial Controller in 1993. 
Following the completion of the merger between Tan & Tan and IGB in 2002, she was appointed Senior Group General Manager of Group 

LIM GIK CHAY
Executive Director (Construction)
Malaysian, Male, Age 55

Institution of Engineers Malaysia. 

Engineer, then promoted as Construction Manager, and subsequently assumed the present role of Executive Director (Construction) in 

GOH HONG SEONG
Senior General Manager (Property Management) 
Malaysian, Male, Age 64

Fellow of the Institution of Engineers Malaysia.
 

Penang Development Corporation involved in the development of Penang State, namely Komtar, Bandar Bayan Baru, Bandar Seberang Perai, 

Malayan Land Berhad and spend a great deal of time in the development of Bandar Seri Alam Township in Johor before joining IGB as head 

Note

(i) any family relationship with any Director and/or major shareholder of the Company save for Dato’ Seri Robert Tan Chung Meng and 
Tan Boon Lee;
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STATEMENT OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Goldis Berhad (“Goldis” or “the Company”) and its Board of Directors (“the Board”) is committed to achieving and demonstrating high 

meet the interests of stakeholders.

The Board has endeavoured to ensure the Principles and Recommendations as set out in the Malaysian Code of Corporate Governance 2012 
(“MCCG 2012”) are observed throughout the Group.

In this Statement, the Board reports on the manner in which the Group had adopted and applied the Principles and Recommendations as set 
out in the MCCG 2012 throughout the year under review.

IGB, a major subsidiary of Goldis is a public listed company and has its own internal controls systems and Standard Operating Procedures 
(“SOPs”) to oversee the application and oversight of risk management and controls, internal audit, corporate governance, Directors’ 
responsibilities and Board Committees’ duties and responsibilities. The Statement of Corporate Governance of IGB is detailed in its own 
Annual Report.

1 ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
  
 Functions of the Board  
  
 The Board plays a pivotal role in the stewardship of its strategic business direction and enhancement in shareholders’ value. The 

  
 (i) Reviewing and adopting a strategic plan for the Company
  
  The Board plays an active role in guiding management in the strategic planning of the Company. Management will present a 

budget for the Group at the end of every year for the following year. Thereafter a midyear review would be conducted with 
management reviewing their recommended strategy and business plan and the amended budget and variances will be tabled 
and approved by the Board. 

 (ii) Overseeing the conduct of the business of the Company to evaluate whether the business is being properly managed
  

investment in subsidiaries.
  
 (iii) Identifying principal risks and ensure the implementation of appropriate systems to manage these risks
  
  The Board through the Audit Committee oversees the risk management framework of the Group. The Group Internal Auditor 

monitors the areas of high risk and adequacy of compliance and control procedures and reports to the Audit Committee.
  
  Further details of the Company’s risk management and internal controls are set out in the Statement on Risk Management and 

Internal Controls on pages 37 to 39 of the Annual Report.
  
 (iv) Succession planning
  
  The Board through the Nomination Committee oversees the succession planning process of the Company. The Board Charter 

sets out the procedures for new nominations to the Board. Suitability of the proposed candidates are based on established 
selection criteria as set out in the Evaluation Policy Framework in the Board Charter.

  
 (v) Developing and implementing an investor relations policy for the Company
  
  Goldis has an investor relations policy which promotes effective communication with shareholders and encourages 

participation at General Meetings. The policy is available on the website of the Company.
  
 (vi) Reviewing the adequacy and the integrity of the internal controls systems and management information systems, including 

systems for compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines of the Company.

  The Board is ultimately responsible for the adequacy and integrity of the internal controls system and management information 
system of the Group. Further details on this is set out in the Statement on Risk Management and Internal Controls on pages  
37 to 39 of the Annual Report.
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 (cont’d)

as the Group CEO effective from 31 December 2016. Ms Tan Lei Cheng remains as a Director and from 1 January 2017 was re-
designated as a Non-Independent Non-Executive Director and Non-Executive Chairman. After due deliberations by the Nomination 

Committee (“EXCO”) would be formed to oversee the day to day operations of the Group comprising senior management of which Ms 
Tan Lei Cheng is the Chairman. The Goldis EXCO has authority to oversee the conduct of Goldis Group’s businesses/investments and 
to review and/or implement strategic plans for Goldis Group with restricted authority given by way of limits determined by the Board. 

  
 (a) review the long term objective of the Group and its subsidiaries;
 (b) direct and oversee the formulation of strategic direction and initiatives, including mergers and acquisition or disposal of 

which the approval of the Board will be sought;
 (c) develop and implement business plans, policies, procedures and budgets, manage the day to day activities to achieve the 

objectives of the Group and its subsidiaries; 

as and when necessary;
 (e) prioritise and allocate investment and resources;
 (f) manage and develop talents;

 (h) manage external threats/risk faced by the Group.

 The existence of an EXCO ensures continuity of leadership for critical positions in terms of succession planning as there is no 
complete dependence on a single individual. 

  
 Board Charter
  
 The Board had in 2013 formalised a Board Charter setting out the duties and responsibilities of the Board. The Board Charter is 

reviewed as and when the need arises to ensure it remains consistent with the Board’s objectives and responsibilities and relevant 
standards of corporate governance. The Board Charter covers key areas such as constitution and principal responsibilities of the 
board, board meeting procedure, board committees, annual review of directors and evaluation forms. It is available to shareholders 
for review upon request in writing submitted to the Company.  

  
 Directors’ Code of Ethics 
  
 The Directors continue to adhere to the Directors’ Code of Ethics established by the Companies Commission of Malaysia. The 

principles on which this Code of Ethics rely on are those that concern transparency, integrity, accountability and corporate social 
responsibilities. The Code of Ethics is available on the website of the Company ( . 

 Whistle-Blowing Policy 
  
 In line with good governance and transparency, a Whistle-Blowing Policy was adopted by the Company to report concerns relating 

to illegal, unethical or improper conduct in circumstances where employees and the public may be apprehensive about raising their 
concerns due to fear of possible adverse repercussions. The policy enables staff to raise concerns openly and locally. The policy is 
available on the website of the Company. 

  
 Sustainable Policy 

 Goldis is committed to operating in a sustainable manner and has adopted a Sustainable Policy. Details of the sustainability initiatives 
undertaken by the Group are furnished in the Sustainability Statement on pages 31 to 36 of the Annual Report. 

 Access to Information and Advice
  
 The Directors have direct and unrestricted access to Senior Management and to all information which they may require in discharging 

their duties. This information includes both verbal and written details. The Directors could also request for such professional advice 
via the Board and various Board Committees set up with their own established terms of reference and operating procedures which are 
reviewed on a regular basis. 

  
 All Directors are provided with an agenda and a set of Board papers electronically and in hard copies prior to the Board Meetings. 

Any additional information requested by Directors is promptly furnished. Where deemed necessary, external consultants and advisors 

and decisions including dissenting views are minuted and recorded accordingly.  
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 Senior management is invited to brief and report in meetings of the Board and Board Committees. Informal meetings are held for 
Senior Management to brief Directors on prospective deals and potential developments in the early stages. 

   
 Company Secretary 
  

and services of the Company Secretaries who facilitates overall compliance with the Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”), 
Companies Act, 2016 and other relevant laws and regulations, advise the Board on all governance issues and ensure the Directors 
are provided with relevant information on a timely basis for decision making. Thus, the Board, with the support of the Company 
Secretaries, monitors developments in corporate governance, statutory and regulatory requirements relating to Directors’ duties and 
responsibilities. 

 
2 STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION 
  
 BOARD COMMITTEES 
  
 Board Committees assist the Directors in the discharge of their duties and responsibilities. All Committees operate under Board 

approved terms of reference, which may be updated from time to time to keep abreast with developments in law and best practices 
in Corporate Governance. The Board has established four (4) Board Committees, namely the Nomination Committee, Remuneration 
Committee, Audit Committee and ESOS Committee. The Chairman of the respective Board Committees report to the Board on any 
salient matters raised and which require the attention, guidance and approval from the Board. Minutes of the Committee meetings are 
circulated to the Board for their information. 

 A Nomination Committee

  

  
   Datuk Tan Kim Leong 
   Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah 

  The Nomination Committee comprises exclusively of Independent Directors. Although the Chairman of the Nomination 
Committee is not the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, the Nomination Committee is able to perform its duties 
transparently and independently with the whole of its members being Independent Directors. Meetings of the Nomination 

twice.    
    
  The terms of reference of Nomination Committee include amongst others, the reporting responsibilities, duties and procedure 

for nomination and assessment.

  The Nomination Committee’s primary function is the selection and assessment of directors to ensure the Board’s composition 
remains relevant and optimal. A summary of the key activities of the Nomination Committee in discharging its duties during the 

  
    
  (i) Reviewed the size, composition and effectiveness of the Board   
    

experience, integrity, competence, time and independence to effectively discharge their respective roles. The Independent 
Directors provide the necessary checks and balances in the Board’s exercise of their independent evaluation of Board’s 
decisions with an appropriate balance of executive and independent directors. The Board currently comprises eight (8) 

of the Board complies with the prescribed requirements for one-third (1/3) of the membership of the Board to be 
Independent Board Members.   

    
  (ii) Assessed the performance of individual Directors based on their integrity, strategic perspective, business acumen, ability 

    
  (iii) Assessed the performance of Board Committees based on their respective terms of reference, authority to carry out 

duties, access to senior management, internal and external auditors for information and co-operation of the committee 
members amongst other criteria.  

    
  (iv) Assessed the independence of Independent Directors based on their relationship with the Company and business 

dealings or transactions with the Company amongst other criteria.   
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    During Board Meetings, Datuk Tan Kim Leong and Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah are able to express their opinions 

free of concern of their positions and their views are taken seriously, of which, without their approval, corporate 
proposals would not be carried out. The Board is of the opinion that it is the approach and the attitude of the 
Independent Non-Executive Directors which is critical in determining their independent status. 

    
   Datuk Tan Kim Leong and Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah have performed their duties diligently and in the 

best interest of the Company by providing independent and balanced assessment of proposals from the 
management. 

    
   

business, SOPs, internal controls and risk management of the Group. 
    
  (vi) Assessed the performance of the Audit Committee Members based on their respective terms of reference, experience, 

    
  (vii) Assessed the performance of the Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) based on his integrity, professional conduct, 

 
  (viii) Assessed the suitability of new appointments of Board members.

   Before appointing a member of the Board, the Nomination Committee will assess the candidate based on established 
selection criteria as set out in the Board Charter. The Nomination Committee undertook an assessment of Ms Tan 

background, experience and directorships in other organisations. Ms Tan Mei Sian had been acting as the Alternate 

 
  (ix) Recommended to the Board for decision on the tabling of the proposed re-election of the Directors by rotation for 

shareholders’ approval at the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”).  

  Assessment Procedure 
  
   The Nomination Committee carries out the assessment of Board, individual Directors, Board Committees, independence of 

Independent Directors, Audit Committee members and CFO annually. Individuals abstain from deliberations on their own 
assessment. 

  
  The Company Secretary facilitates the Nomination Committee by preparing and distributing the questionnaires to the respective 

communicated to the Nomination Committee for its consideration and action. All assessments and evaluations carried out by 
the Nomination Committee in the discharge of all its functions are documented. 

  Re-Election of Directors  
 

(3) years and offer themselves for re-election. The election of each Director is voted on separately. The Executive Directors 
also rank for re-election by rotation. Re-election of Directors provides an opportunity for shareholders to renew their mandate 
conferred to the Directors. 

  
  In accordance to the MCCG 2012, an Independent Non-Executive Director can remain as Independent Director after 

meeting. 
  
  The Directors who are due for retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election pursuant to Article 98 of the Company’s Articles 

beyond nine (9) years under the MCCG 2012 are Datuk Tan Kim Leong and Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah. 
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  Boardroom Diversity 
  
  The Board recognizes the policy of Boardroom diversity in terms of gender, age and ethnicity. Our Board has both male (6) 

and female (2) representations and the required collective skills, experience and expertise contributed by Directors as detailed 
on pages of 13 to 15. They come from diverse background, bringing a wealth of experience and leadership qualities. Most 
importantly, it does not practise any discrimination of any form, whether based on marital status, sexual orientation, race, 
origin, religion, religious beliefs, political opinion or disability.  

 B Remuneration Committee 
  

  Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah 
  Datuk Tan Kim Leong 
  
  Mr Tan Boon Lee 
  Ms Tan Lei Cheng 
    
  
  The Remuneration Committee comprises mainly of Non-Executive Directors. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee are held 

  
  Directors’ Remuneration  
  
  The objective of the policy of the Company on Directors’ remuneration is to attract and retain the Directors of the calibre 

needed to run the Group successfully.

  The Remuneration Committee reviews the CEO’s remuneration annually and recommends to the Board the remuneration 
framework and package, drawing from outside advice where necessary. The remuneration of the CEO consists of basic salary 
and other emoluments. The remuneration is structured so as to link rewards to corporate and individual performance. In line 
with her retirement as the CEO, the Remuneration Committee had proposed to the Board a one-off retirement gratuity to be 
paid to her in recognition of her long service and contribution to the Company. The proposal was approved by the shareholders 
at the last AGM held on 25 May 2016. 

  
  The Directors are paid fees which are approved annually by the shareholders in the AGM. The Remuneration Committee reviews 

the Directors’ fees annually and the last revision was made in 2014.  
  

they attend. Similarly, members of the Board Committees are also paid a meeting allowance for each Committee meeting they 
attend. 

  
  The Director concerned abstains from deliberations and voting on decisions in respect of his/her individual remuneration 

package. 
  

Company

Salary 
& EPF 

Contributions
RM’000

Fees
RM’000

Meeting 
Allowances

RM’000

Other 
Emoluments

RM’000

Benefits-
in-kind 
RM’000

Total 
RM’000

Executive Directors 1,621 92 21 16,069 7 17,810

Non-Executive Directors - 160 98 - - 258
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Group

Salary 
& EPF 

Contributions
RM’000

Fees
RM’000

Meeting 
Allowances

RM’000

Other 
Emoluments

RM’000

Benefits-
in-kind 
RM’000

Total 
RM’000

Executive Directors 11,148 102 123 27,368 81 38,822

Non-Executive Directors - 160 98 - - 258

   

Range of Remuneration Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors

RM50,000 and below - - 

RM50,001-RM100,000 - 3

RM100,001-RM300,000 - - 

RM300,001-RM350,000 1 - 

RM350,001-RM1,400,000 - - 

RM1,400,001-RM1,450,000 1 - 

RM1,450,001-RM1,850,000 - - 

RM1,850,001-RM1,900,000 1 - 

RM1,900,001-RM17,350,000 - - 

RM17,350,001-RM17,400,000 1 - 

RM17,400,001-RM17,750,000 - - 

RM17,750,001-RM17,800,000 1 - 

  The Board views that the transparency in respect of Directors’ remuneration has been dealt with by the disclosure.

 C Audit Committee 
  

  
 Datuk Tan Kim Leong 
 Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah

 
  

Committee met four (4) times during the year. The Audit Committee also met with the external auditors without the presence of 
any Executive Directors present. The terms of reference which include the objectives, authority, functions and activities of the 
Audit Committee during the year have been described in detail in a separate statement in the Annual Report. 

  Please refer to pages 40 to 44 of the Annual Report.

 D ESOS Committee 
  

  Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah 
  Datuk Tan Kim Leong 
  Mr Tan Boon Lee 
  Ms Tan Lei Cheng 
   

  The ESOS Committee’s primary function is to administer the Employees’ Share Option Scheme in accordance with the Bye-Laws. 
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3 REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE 
  
 Assessment of Independence of Independent Directors 
  

with the level of independence demonstrated by the Independent Directors. 
  
 Tenure of Independent Directors 
  
 The Nomination Committee and Board hold the view that the length of service of Datuk Tan Kim Leong and Encik Daud Mah bin 

Abdullah has not in any way interfered with their objective and independent judgement in carrying out their roles as members of the 

Encik Daud Mah bin Abdullah, who have served on Board beyond nine (9) years remain independent and recommend the same to the 
shareholders for approval at the AGM. 

  
 Separation of Positions of the Chairman and CEO 
  

and the Chairman of the Company were held by the same person. The CEO was responsible for managing the CEOs/leaders of the 
various subsidiaries who managed the day to day management of the subsidiaries as well as developing, meeting and implementing 
the corporate strategies and objectives of the Company. The function of the Chairman that was held by the CEO was to ensure the 
orderly conduct and working of the Board, the management of the business and the translation of Board’s decision into executive 
action. Although the positions were held by the same Board member, no individual may dominate the Board on decision-making. 
An open environment is encouraged for debate and ensures the Independent Directors are able to speak freely and contribute 
effectively. 

 Although the Board does not comprise a majority of Independent Directors, it has a high proportion of Independent Directors. All 
the Directors exercise a high duty of due care with respect to the matters which they consider and bring objective judgement to bear 
in decision making. The Independent Directors are independent of executive management and free of any business relationship that 
could materially interfere with the exercise of unfettered and independent judgement that could compromise their ability to act in the 
best interests of the Company. They have the capacity to fully deliberate and examine strategies proposed by management, therefore 
safeguarding the interests of the stakeholders.

 
 The Board has appointed Datuk Tan Kim Leong as the Senior Independent Non-Executive Director to whom any concerns pertaining 

to the Group may be conveyed.

 
4 FOSTER COMMITMENT OF DIRECTORS
 
 Time Commitment
 

record of the Directors at the Board Meetings as set out in the table above. Our dedicated Independent Directors even go the extra 
mile to discuss their concerns on issues at hand by engaging with senior management via informal meetings and telephone calls. 

and time are focused on the affairs of the Group. All Board members shall notify the Chairman of the Board formally via a ‘Letter of 

other organization. The new directorships would not unduly affect their time commitments and responsibilities to the Board.

 Board Meetings  
  
 The Board is scheduled to meet quarterly with additional meetings to be convened when urgent matters need to be discussed and 

  
 Where the Board is considering a matter which a Director has an interest, the interested Director will disclose his interest and 

abstains from participating in any discussion or voting on the subject matter. In the event a corporate proposal is required to be 
approved by shareholders, the interested Director will abstain from voting in respect of his/her shareholdings on the resolution 
relating to the corporate proposal and will undertake to ensure that persons connected abstain from voting as well. The Company’s 

the targeted date of announcement of the quarterly results. 
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Name of Director 
Total Meetings 

Attended
Percentage of 

Attendance (%)

Ms Tan Lei Cheng 4/4 100

Datuk Tan Kim Leong 4/4 100

Encik Daud Mah Bin Abdullah 4/4 100

Dato‘ Seri Robert Tan Chung Meng 4/4 100

4/4 100

Mr Tan Boon Lee 4/4 100

Ms Tan Mei Sian
4/4 100

Mr Daniel Yong Chen-I 4/4 100

 Directors’ Training
 
 Directors’ training is an on-going process and the Directors are empowered by the Board to assess their own individual training 

needs. They are encouraged to participate in external training programmes which they individually consider as useful to update 
their knowledge and skills required to discharge their responsibilities. The Company Secretary also keeps the Directors informed of 
relevant external training programmes, facilitates the organisation of training programmes and maintains a complete record of the 
trainings attended by the Directors.

 
 All the Directors have attended and successfully completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme (“MAP”) as prescribed by the 

MMLR.

Directors’ Name Course Detail

Tan Lei Cheng
Companies Act

Proposals
 Advocacy Session on Management Discussion and Analysis for CEOs and CFOs of 

Listed Issuers

Datuk Tan Kim Leong  The New Auditor’s Report – Sharing the UK Experience by Audit Oversight Board Bursa 
Malaysia

Game Changer for Boardroom
 Corporate Governance Breakfast Series with Directors – The Strategy, the Leadership, 

the Stakeholders and the Board
 In Conversation with Andrew Fastow, former CFO of Enron
 The Interplay Between CG, NFI and Investment Decision – What Boards of Listed 

Companies Need to Know

Daud Mah bin Abdullah

Dato’ Seri Robert Tan Chung Meng
Companies Act

Proposals

Tan Boon Lee
Companies Act

Proposals

 (cont’d)
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Directors’ Name Course Detail

Tan Mei Sian

Companies Act
 Advocacy Session on Management Discussion and Analysis for CEOs and CFOs of 

Listed Issuers
 Corporate Governance Education Program/Empowering Women Series 

Engagement with Shareholders

Daniel Yong Chen-I
Optimisation Workshop

 IGB in-house training conducted by Maktab Polis Diraja Malaysia Crisis & Disaster 

Companies Act

Proposals
 

5 UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING
 
 Financial Reporting
 

appropriate accounting policies which are consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. 

Bursa Malaysia and Securities Commission.
 
 Suitability and Assessment of External Auditors
 
 The Board has established a formal and transparent professional relationship with the external auditors of the Group through the 

Audit Committee. The auditors are invited to attend Audit Committee Meetings at least twice a year without executive Board members 

year under review, two (2) private sessions were held on 26 February 2016 and 23 November 2016 between the auditors and the 
Independent Directors.

Audit Committee in accordance to the provisions of the By-Laws on Professional Independence of the MIA. The engagement signing 
partner is rotated every 5 years.

 The Audit Committee also considered the provision of non-audit services by the external auditors during the year and concluded that 
the provision of these services did not compromise the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and the amount of fees paid 

6 RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISKS
 
 Internal Controls
 
 The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound system of internal controls and risk management to safeguard 

shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group. The Statement of Risk Management and Internal Controls is set out on pages 
37 to 39 of the Annual Report providing an overview of the state of internal controls within the Group.

7 TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURES
 
 Goldis is committed in ensuring that shareholders and the market are provided with full and timely information and that all 

stakeholders have equal opportunities to receive information issued by Goldis.
 

 (cont’d)
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technology to disseminate information via announcements made to Bursa Malaysia and published electronically on the website of the 
Company. These information include quarterly results announcement, Annual Report, Circular to Shareholders, other announcements 
and press releases.

 The Company has adopted a Corporate Disclosure Policy issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Malaysia”) which is 
available on the website of the Company. Contact details are also provided on the website to address any enquiries from the public.

8 STRENTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS
 
 AGM
 
 The AGM is the prime forum of dialogue with shareholders. Shareholders are given the opportunity to ask questions at the AGM. The 

Directors, external auditors and senior management are available to provide responses to shareholders during these meetings.

 The notice of the AGM is issued at least twenty-one (21) days before the meeting, in line with the Listing Requirements. The notice is 
also published in a leading English newspaper. 

 At the last AGM, the resolutions put forth for shareholders approval were voted by a show of hands as no substantive resolutions 
were put forth for shareholders approval. Nevertheless, voting of all resolutions at the forthcoming general meetings shall be 
conducted by poll pursuant to the new Listing Requirements.

  
 Annual Report
 

and the Board of Directors. The Annual Report is disseminated to the shareholders in CD-ROM media and is also available on the 
website of the Company. The hard copy of the Annual Report is available upon request.

 
 Investor Relations 
 
 Goldis has an investor relations policy which promotes effective communication with shareholders and encourages participation at 

General Meetings. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

This statement was made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 23 February 2017.

 (cont’d)
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AUDIT AND NON-AUDIT FEES  

ended 31 December 2016 amounted to RM92,000 and RM1,566,000 respectively.

Material Contracts

Other than disclosed in Note 43 of the Financial Statements, there were no other material contracts entered into by the Company and/or 

ADDITIONAL COMPLIANCE STATEMENT 
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 ensured compliance with applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia and the provisions of the Companies Act, 1965;

 adopted and consistently applied appropriate accounting policies; and 

 made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable.

The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Group and Company keep proper accounting records. In addition, the Directors 
have overall responsibilities for the proper safeguarding of the assets of the Group and Company and taking such reasonable steps for the 
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities. 

This statement was made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 23 February 2017.
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1. Introduction

 This Sustainability Statement formally sets out our approach to sustainability as well as discusses the various initiatives that we have 
undertaken in the year to drive sustainability within the Group. This statement covers areas that are integral to our continued success 
and have been deemed to be of importance not only to us but to our stakeholders. 

2. Our Commitment to Sustainability

 Sustainability is not just one part of our business, it is integral to everything that we do. At Goldis Berhad (“Goldis”), we are 
committed to ensuring that all our activities are sustainable and transparent and as such, take into consideration the long term 
impact of our actions on the economy, environment and society. We do this before embarking on new investments as well as in both 
managing and growing our businesses. 

 As the world has grown to be more greatly interdependent, businesses cannot thrive without taking into account its communities. As 
such, people form the cornerstone of our sustainability efforts, as we believe that it is only by doing so that we can continue to enrich 
the lives of those around us as well as create lasting value for our stakeholders. 

 With the new Bursa Malaysia guidelines, we have been given an opportunity to formalise the sustainability initiatives undertaken 
by the Group so that we are better able to monitor and assess our sustainability efforts, as well as identify opportunities to further 
improve our sustainability management and performance. Moving forward, we will build upon the framework that we have set out this 
year and strive to continue to enhance our sustainability efforts. 

3. Our Sustainability Governance Structure

 Our sustainability efforts are the responsibility of the Board which oversees the Group’s sustainability strategies and initiatives. The 
business heads of each of our subsidiaries spearhead sustainability initiatives under their purview and are responsible for formulating, 
implementing and monitoring sustainability efforts for their business. The Group Internal Audit Department provides periodic updates 
to the Audit Committee on sustainability efforts made. 

Malaysia guidelines. Internal workshop were also held to communicate the importance of these guidelines for our business moving 
forward.

4. Materiality Process

 Goldis adopted a bottom up approach to identify factors material to our business. Working groups within each business were tasked 
with identifying their respective economic, environmental and social contributions, taking into account feedback from both internal 
and external stakeholders and assessing the weightage placed on each for their business. 

 a. Economic: Empowering Lives

actions impact the communities in which we operate. As such, it is only through working together that the ecosystem in 
which we live can thrive and be successful. It is therefore important to us that as a Group, we contribute and engage with our 
communities and work to help enrich and empower the lives of the people within it.

  Apart from carrying out charitable donation drives and making monetary donations, we make efforts that seek to have a lasting 
impact. For example, a majority of our workforce comprise Malaysians and we make it a point to engage local suppliers and 
contractors where it makes sense. We also help local businesses through providing them with services that support their day to 
day operations. For example, Macro Lynx Sdn Bhd (“Macro Lynx”), seeks to provide uninterrupted internet access in the Klang 

customers. It also provides business continuity solutions and cloud storage for businesses. 

 b. Environmental: Inculcating Green Mindsets

  Goldis believes that we have a responsibility to help protect the environment and as such have programmes in place to ensure 
that all our businesses carry out sustainable practices. Though these efforts vary across the Group, we are proud of the steps 
taken so far and are committed to work to ensure that our operations are carried out responsibly.

  Product and Service Responsibility

  Our assets have a lasting impact on society and more acutely, on the communities in which they are located. We therefore 
recognise the responsibility that we have to ensure that we act responsibly right from the start. 

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT
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  GTower, which is under the management of our subsidiary, GTower Sdn Bhd, works hard to be environmentally sustainable 

BCA Green Award Mark Scheme. From the planning stages, key elements of development were reconsidered and the latest 
in sustainable green building technologies and systems were harnessed. As a result, the building today has a smaller carbon 
footprint as compared to a building of a similar size. 

  Under IGB Corporation Berhad (“IGB”), our property development and construction divisions employ environmental 
management strategies and engage with Green Building Index (GBI) consultants to cultivate and improve our GBI practices, 
as well as help in achieving a greener and more sustainable outcome. We also use real estate construction green tools to 
benchmark all our projects to aid us in developing sustainable designs. 

  As part of development, we also try to preserve the natural environment as part of our designs. The property development 
division for example ensures that designs for hill slope projects respect the natural terrain and maintain natural contours, only 
allowing earthworks that are necessary. These efforts not only preserve the natural environment but also ensure slope and soil 
stability. 

  Water Conservation

  Water is fast becoming a scarce resource. Experts have warned of a looming water crisis and as such, the need for water 
conservation is pressing. Goldis, through our subsidiaries, seeks to both proactively work to conserve water as part of our 
ongoing operations and educate the public about the need to preserve this precious resource. 

  Through the China Water Group for example, we seek to improve the discharged water quality and contribute to a cleaner 
water environment in cities located in Eastern China. We have established water treatment plants through a Build, Operate and 
Transfer investment model and this year, sought to achieve a Grade 1A discharge standard for all our waste water plants. We 
are proud to report that we have achieved our target, with the exception of our plant in the Jiangsu province of Ganyu.

  At GTower, we have created water catchment areas to harvest rainwater which is then used to irrigate the building’s green 

building. Water consumption in 2016 was 132,508m3 compared to 156,949m3 in 2015. Condensed water from the building’s air 
conditional system is also collected and pumped into the building cooling tower system which not only helps conserve water 
but contributes to energy savings. In 2016, we harvested 3,011m3 of rain water for landscape irrigation compared to 3,060m3 
in 2015.

any factors causing the spikes in a timely manner. We also encourage tenants and employees to play their part in conserving 
water, particularly in areas where water consumption is traditionally high such as in food and beverage outlets. 

  We recognise that more can be done to reduce water usage across the Group and will continue to explore innovation solutions 
which will allow us to do so moving forward.

  Waste Management

  We actively encourage responsible waste management across our businesses. 

generated. As such, an initiative was kick started in 2012 to compost part of this waste. Today, approximately 500kg of food 
waste is composted every week. 

  At GTower, housekeeping staff are educated on the proper methods of separating waste and all recyclable waste is disposed of 
in recycling bins. Total dry recycling waste collected in 2016 was 7,060 kg compared to 7,449 kg in 2015.

  On our construction sites, all GBI guidelines, including those on waste management, are clearly communicated to all personnel. 
We also appoint waste management representatives who are responsible for minimising pollutants and encouraging the use of 
renewable resources. These representatives also look into accurately measuring waste produced and setting realistic targets to 
ensure minimum wastage. 

  More generally, we make sure that employees, tenants and contractors are provided with the necessary support to segregate 
recyclable materials from general waste through providing recycling bins. We also work to educate all our employees on the 
importance of responsible waste management and the ways in which they can play their part.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (cont’d)
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  Energy Conservation

  Using energy responsibly forms part of our efforts to reduce our environmental footprint which we believe contributes to our 

energy consumption and have taken steps to do so in varying degrees.

  Designs for development projects also incorporate natural lighting to minimise the need to turn on indoor lights where 

  The latest in Green Building Technology was utilised during the development of GTower, allowing it to better achieve a 
sustainable and low energy environment. Since completion, the building’s management continues to invest in and explore 
innovative solutions to further improve overall energy consumption. In 2016, for example, the management team at GTower 

energy compared to 2015 (total energy consumed in 2015 was 8,712,840Kwh). This savings contributed to an additional 
reduction in CO2 of 411,400kg. In 2016, GTower consumed 7,932,163Kwh of electricity compared to 8,712,840Kwh in 2015.

 c. Social: Our People Matter

  Health and Safety

abide by all necessary health and safety guidelines and regulations and have the ability to take additional steps to ensure that 
any potential risks are mitigated, where required. Selected employees who take on health and safety responsibilities within the 

  We also encourage our employees to lead a healthy lifestyle and promote a work-life balance. Employees are encouraged to 
engage in sporting and leisure activities and are offered a gym membership with our subsidiary, Elements Medical Fitness Sdn 
Bhd (fka Elements Gym Sdn Bhd) (“Elements Medical Fitness”), at a staff rate.

  The work being done by Elements Medical Fitness in particular is pivotal in encouraging both our staff and communities to lead 
a healthier lifestyle. Through programmes which they run on a variety of topics such as obesity, clients are given the tools and 
support they need to achieve their healthy lifestyle goals. Elements Medical Fitness also helps to educate its clients and the 

and health screenings, amongst others. 

  Human Capital Management

  We recognise that our employees are our most valuable asset. As such, we work hard to retain existing employees as well 
as attract new talent to the Group. We provide ample opportunities for employee development and professional growth with 

are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge needed to carry out their jobs as well as be successful. As part of our 
efforts to build better rapport amongst our employees, various activities are organised throughout the year to enhance social 
cohesion. Examples of these activities include badminton, bowling and futsal tournaments, festive gatherings and birthday 
celebrations.

  Goldis values diversity in the work place and does not tolerate any form of discrimination against employees or applicants. 
Moreover, we do not employ or condone the employment of forced or child labour. This commitment is evident in initiatives 
carried out by some of our subsidiaries. Macro Lynx for example, believes that everyone should be given a fair opportunity to 
work and run a programme which employs people with disabilities. 

  Supporting Communities

  Goldis and our subsidiaries play our part in giving back to society through GivingIsGold, a unique Corporate Social 
Responsibility (“CSR”) programme that provides an online platform which connects and matches interested donors to charity 

the need of the needy’.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (cont’d)
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well as help carry out repair works in the home. Essential items such as towels, bedsheets, shampoos and lotions, were also 

also invited to a Ramadhan buffet dinner at GTower to celebrate the special occasion.

such as Rumah WAKE, PERNIM, PERTIWI and PT Foundation.

  In December 2016, GivingIsGold initiated a Christmas Donation Clothing Drive campaign to collect new and second-hand 
clothing to be given away to the needy. In collaboration with the concierge at GTower, the clothing drive successfully collected 
more than 1,500 pieces of clothing from members of the public across all ages and genders. All contributions were channelled 
to Rumah WAKE, Pusat Jagaan Nuri and other charity homes.

5. Looking Ahead

 Around the world, companies are increasingly propelled to include sustainability considerations in their decisions, adopt responsible 

today and an increasing urgency to push forward sustainability so that we can shape a better tomorrow for future generations. 

 At Goldis, we are committed to delivering value to all our stakeholders through sustaining growth in our businesses, empowering 
the lives of our people and nurturing communities. With the new Bursa guidelines, we have been given an opportunity to formalise 
what we already have in place and put in a framework that will allow us to better align ourselves to best practices and international 
benchmarks and track our sustainability performance. 

 Moving forward, we will continue to actively engage with our stakeholders as part of our sustainability journey and seek out 
innovation solutions as well as like-minded partners as we continue to grow. As an established player in the market, we have an 
opportunity to effect change and it is our hope that through our efforts we will not only positively impact our local communities, but 
play a part in shaping a sustainable future for generations to come.

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (cont’d)
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GTower Green Building

Community

Christmas Donation Clothing Drive Campaign

- new and second-hand good condition clothing

Sonata Vision

- Ramadhan buffet dinner at GTower for children of Pusat Jagaan Nuri

Pusat Jagaan Nuri

- fixing home

SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (cont’d)
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SUSTAINABILITY STATEMENT (cont’d)
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Donations to various HIV organisations such as Rumah WAKE, PERNIM, PERTIWI and PT Foundation
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises that a sound framework of risk management and internal controls is fundamental to good corporate governance to 
safeguard shareholders’ investment and the assets of the Group.

operational, environmental and compliance controls.

Risk Management is not about eliminating all risks; it is about identifying, assessing and responding to risks to achieve the objectives of the 
Group.

In view of the limitations that are inherent in any internal controls system, a sound system of internal controls could only reduce, but 
cannot eliminate, the possibility of poor judgement in decision-making, human error, control processes being deliberately circumvented 
by employees and others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseeable circumstances. It is structured in such a 

event or situation is at a level acceptable to the business through a combination of preventive, detective and corrective measures.

The review of risk management and internal controls effectiveness only covers the operating units, subsidiaries and associated companies 
of the Group with the exception of IGB Corporation Berhad (“IGB”), which has become a subsidiary of the Group on 6 November 2014. The 
Board of Goldis Berhad (“Goldis”) has conducted a review on IGB’s governance structure and concluded that the Board of Goldis can rely 
on the Board of this subsidiary, a public listed company with its own independent directors, risk management and internal controls systems 

The key senior management of Goldis are accountable to the Board for implementing and monitoring the system of risk management 
and internal controls and for providing assurance to the Board that it has done so. Through regular performance review, the key senior 
management of Goldis Berhad believes that the risk management and internal controls systems of the Group are operating adequately and 
effectively, in all material aspects, based on the risk management model adopted by the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board recognises its role and responsibilities on effective risk oversight to set the tone and culture towards effective risk management 

the actions of the committee with regards to the execution of the delegated role.

In order to ensure that the risk management and internal controls are embedded into the culture, processes and structure of the Group, the 
system of risk management and internal controls was articulated with the following key elements.

Policies and Procedures

The Group Risk Management framework and methodology, was approved and adopted by the Board. The framework and methodology has 
been communicated to the senior management of all the subsidiaries of the Group through on-going training and facilitation from the Group 
Internal Audit Department (“GIAD”).

Vision and Mission

as the strategies and objectives for achieving the goals. The mission statements had been clearly communicated to all levels of staff of the 
subsidiaries and are subject to review and update on an annual basis by the top management and the Board of the Group.
 
Risk Attitude

or accept in pursuit of its value. The Risk Analysis Parameters are set based on the vision and management risk appetite of the company 
and are measured in terms of likelihood and impact. The parameters are subject to review and updates from time to time in response to the 
changes in the business environment.

Risk Analysis and Management

relevant to the business of the company and the achievement of objectives and strategies. The management is also responsible to 
implement and monitor the risk management framework in accordance with the strategic vision, mission and overall risk appetite of the 
company. It involves the assessment of the impact and likelihood of such risks and the effectiveness of controls in place to manage them. 
The process includes the enhancement of the system of internal controls when there are changes in the business environment or regulatory 
guidelines. All risks will be rated as Gross (without taking into consideration the controls in place) and Nett (after taking into consideration 
the controls in place) in accordance to a Risk Analysis Matrix. This process has been embedded in all aspects of the Group’s activities and 
has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of this statement for inclusion in the Annual Report.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS (cont’d)

Key Risk Register

Each subsidiary maintains a register to record the result of its on-going risk analysis and risk management in a structured manner to 
facilitate monitoring and for review purposes. Key Risk Register contains details of all key risks faced by the company, their rating, existing 
treatments (i.e. preventive, detective and corrective measures) as well as planned treatments (i.e. Management Action Plan) with the person 

reporting to the Audit Committee.

On-going Assessment

The management assists the Board in the implementation of the Board’s policies and procedures on risks and internal controls by 
identifying and assessing the risks faced and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control 
these risks. All employees are accountable for operating within these policies. The Management reports regularly on the management of 

by the Group and the adequacy of internal controls to manage those risks. Emerging risks as a result of changes in the business and 

Committee and Board accordingly. The Group Internal Audit (“GIA”) based on its regular reviews, will report to the Audit Committee on 
subsidiaries’ discipline and effort in maintaining an effective system of internal controls on a quarterly basis.

In addition to the on-going assessment of risk management and internal controls systems, on a quarterly basis, letters of assurance are 
provided by the subsidiaries that are responsible for implementing the processes of risk analysis and internal controls, to assert that the 
processes are functioning in an effective manner.

Annual Assessment

Annually, subsidiaries are required to perform a review and update on the existing Key Risk Register to ensure the register does not leave 

are being taken to manage those risks. The updated Key Risk Register will be further reviewed by the GIAD before it is summarised and 
presented to the Audit Committee for deliberation and comment on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group risk management and 
internal controls systems.
 

Strategic risks are emerging high level external risks arising from unexpected adverse changes in the business environment of which its 
occurrence would result in the destruction (or the possibility of the total elimination) of shareholders’ value in the company. It is imperative 
for management of all subsidiaries to perform analysis to identify the risk of such nature and report to the Audit Committee and the Board 
for deliberation and comment on an annual basis.

Annually, the GIAD will perform risk management process maturity analysis on each subsidiary and report to the Audit Committee on the 
progress of management efforts on embedding risk management and control framework into the culture, processes and structure of the 
company.

New Investment Risk Analysis

It is imperative for subsidiaries which initiate new investment proposal (e.g. joint venture, new subsidiary, project etc.) to perform risk 
analysis on the new investment and submit together with all other analysis such as due diligences, SWOT analysis, market research, 

and Board for approval.

IGB Group Risk Management Processes

IGB Board has established a risk management framework and communicated to the management on the risk appetite and tolerance that 
the Group is willing to accept in pursuit of its objectives. Risk management in IGB Group involves an on-going process for identifying, 

impacting the achievement of business objectives of the Group. It also involved the assessment of the impact and likelihood of such risks 
and of the effectiveness of controls in place to manage them. The process included the enhancement of the system of internal controls 
when there are changes to business environment or regulatory guidelines. This process has been embedded in all aspects of the Group’s 
activities and has been in place for the year under review and up to the date of approval of this statement for inclusion in the annual report.
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STATEMENT ON RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS (cont’d)

The management assists the Board in the implementation of the Board’s policies and procedures on risk and internal controls by identifying 
and assessing the risk faced and in the design, operation and monitoring of suitable internal controls to mitigate and control these risk. All 

are taken to manage the risks. IGB GIAD function provides further independent assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk 
management and internal control system as part of their audit reviews. All report relating to the risk management process are brought to the 
attention of the Board through the Audit Committee.

KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROL PROCESSES

delegated to management the implementation of the system of internal control.

Clearly defined lines of responsibility and delegated authority

levels.
 
Management Meetings

Budget

The Annual Budgets and revised Budgets are prepared by each operating company in the Group and are submitted to the Board for 
approval. It provides the Board with comparative information to assess and monitor the performance of the Group.

Internal Audit

The GIAD reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Group functionally to preserve the independence of the function. The internal 

Committee. GIA also facilitates and evaluates the effectiveness of the governance, risk management and internal control framework and 

Best Practices in Internal Controls

An internal control best practice has been established for key areas and has been distributed to each subsidiary for adoption. Each 
subsidiary will review and ensure that the internal controls best practices are incorporated into their existing Standard Operating Procedures.

Information and Communication

business operation of the Group.

MONITORING

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal controls systems of the Group 
at periodic Board meetings and the risk management and internal controls systems will continue to be reviewed, enhanced and updated in 
line with changes in the operating environment.

The Board is pleased to report that the risk management framework was functioning within levels appropriate to the Group businesses and 
there were no material internal controls systems failures nor were there any reported weaknesses which would have resulted in material 
losses or contingencies for the year under review and up to the date of this statement.

This statement was made in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors passed on 23 February 2017.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

(“FY”) 2016.

COMPOSITION

MEMBERS AND MEETINGS

Name of Director Membership Status
Meetings 
Attended

Percentage of 
Attendance (%)

Datuk Tan Kim Leong Senior Independent Non-Executive Director 4/4 100

Daud Mah Bin Abdullah Independent Non-Executive Director 4/4 100

Independent Non-Executive Director 4/4 100

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

A Objectives

 (1) To ensure transparency, integrity and accountability of the activities of the Group so as to safeguard the rights and interests of 
the shareholders.

 (2) To provide assistance to the Board in discharging its responsibilities relating to the management of principal risks, internal 

 (3) To maintain regularly scheduled meetings, a direct line of communication between the Board, senior management, internal and 
external auditors.

B Membership

 The Audit Committee shall be appointed by the Board from amongst its Directors and shall consist of not less than three (3) 
members, a majority of whom shall be Independent Directors. All members of the Audit Committee should be Non-Executive 
Directors. If membership for any reason falls below three (3) members, the Board shall within three (3) months of that event, appoint 

 (1) The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a chairman from among their number who shall be an Independent Director.

 (2) No Alternate Director shall be appointed to the Audit Committee.

  (a) must be a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”); or

  (b) if he is not a member of the MIA, he must have at least three (3) years of working experience and have passed the 

 

reference.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

C Authority

 (1) Investigate any activity within its terms of reference.

 (2) Seek any information it requires from any employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with any request made by the 
Audit Committee.

 (3) Obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant 
experience and expertise if it considers this necessary.

 The Audit Committee shall have direct access to the internal and external auditors, who in turn, have access at all times to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee should meet with the external auditors without executive Board members 
present at least twice a year.

D Functions

  (a) their audit plan;

  (b) their evaluation of the internal controls systems;

  (c) their audit report;

  (d) the assistance given by the employees of the Company to them;

  (e) their suitability and independence such as ensuring the provision of non-audit services would not impair the external 
auditors independence and obtaining written assurance from the external auditors confirming they have been 
independent throughout the conduct of the audit engagement;

  (a) the adequacy of the scope and plan, functions and resources of the internal audit function and that it has the necessary 
authority to carry out its work;

  (b) the internal audit programme, processes and results of the internal audit programme, processes or investigation 
undertaken and ensure that appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;

  (c) the effectiveness of the internal controls systems;

  (e) the appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function;

  (a) going concern assumptions;

  (b) changes in accounting policies and practices;
 

any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity;

 (5) To consider and recommend the nomination and appointment, the audit fee and any questions of resignation, dismissal or  
re-appointment of the external auditors;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

(in the absence of management, where necessary);

 (7) To review the external auditors’ management letter and management’s response;

 (8) To approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the internal audit function;

 (9) To take cognisance of resignations of internal audit staff members;

 (10) Where the Audit Committee is of the view that a matter reported by it to the Board has not been satisfactorily resolved resulting 
in a breach of Main Market Listing Requirements (“MMLR”), the Audit Committee must promptly report such matter to Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad;

 (11) To act as a forum for communication between the Board, Senior Management and Internal Audit Function;

 (12) To ensure adequate monitoring and review of the effectiveness of the systems established by management to identify, assess, 
manage and monitor the various risks arising from the activities of the Company; and

 (13) Such other functions as may be agreed to by the Audit Committee and the Board.

E Procedure for Audit Committee

 Meetings shall be held not less than four (4) times a year. The external auditors may request for a meeting and shall have the right to 
appear and be heard at any meeting of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee Chairman shall convene a meeting whenever any 
member of the Audit Committee requests for a meeting. Written notice of the meeting together with the agenda shall be given to the 
members of the Audit Committee and the external auditors, where applicable.

 The Chairman of the Audit Committee should engage on a continuous basis with senior management, such as the Chairman of the 

informed of matters affecting the Company.

communication and a resolution or decision passed by such a conference will, despite the fact that the members are not present 
together in one place at the time of the conference, be deemed to have been passed at the Audit Committee Meeting held on the day 
on which and at the time at which the conference was held. Any meeting held in such manner shall be deemed to be held at such 
place as shall be agreed upon by the members attending the meeting provided that at least one (1) member present at the meeting 
was at such place for the duration of the meeting.

 The quorum for a meeting shall be two (2) provided always that the majority of members present must be Independent Directors and 
any decision shall be by a simple majority. The Audit Committee Chairman shall have a casting vote in case of an equality of votes 
except where only two (2) Directors are competent to vote on the question at issue.

Other Board members and employees may attend meetings upon the invitation of the Audit Committee.

 The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Audit Committee and shall circulate the minutes of meeting of the Audit 
Committee to all members of the Board.

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

Financial Reporting and Compliance

which were announced via the regulatory information service immediately after the Board’s approvals, respectively on 26 February 2016, 

FS2015 presented a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Goldis Group and complied with regulatory requirements.

statements.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

Internal Audit

(a) Reviewed Group Internal Audit Department (GIAD)’s reports on the effectiveness and adequacy of internal controls, risk 
management, operational, compliance and governance processes of the Group and management’s responses and implementation 
of audit recommendations that were being properly addressed and corrected. A total of eleven (11) audit reports (including follow-
up audits) were issued by GIAD for assignments conducted on Goldis Group based on the 2016 plan. Findings which were rated 
as “Improvements Required” were mainly relating to controls weaknesses, compliance shortcoming and documentation anomalies 

internal auditors’ recommendations and suggestions for improvement.

(b) Reviewed and approved the GIAD’s audit plan 2017 to ensure adequate scope and coverage of operational, compliance and internal 
controls of Goldis Group. In planning for the audit of Goldis Group, a risk based auditing approach was adopted. The approach 
emphasised on effective planning and scoping of audit to suit the size and activities of functional areas and to concentrate audit 
resources on areas that exposed the operations to greater degree of risk.

(c) Monitored the corrective actions taken on the outstanding audit issues to ensure all control lapses have been addressed.

(d) Reviewed the Audit Committee reports and minutes of Audit Committee meetings submitted by IGB Corporation Berhad (“IGB”), a 
major subsidiary of Goldis on a quarterly basis. GIAD had reviewed the reports and highlighted all key issues raised in the reports to 
the Audit Committee of Goldis on a quarterly basis for knowledge and further actions, where necessary.

(e) Reviewed the governance structure of IGB, to determine the robustness and accountability in their commitment to good governance 
practices pursuant to the MMLR and Code of Corporate Governance. The review consists of assessment of Board structure, duties, 

to rely on the Board of IGB, a public listed company with its own independent directors, risk management and internal controls 

External Audit

(b) Reviewed external auditors’ audit plan 2016 for Goldis Group, encompassing the proposed work blueprint, nature and scope for the 
year’s audit and other examination including the evaluation of internal control system and risk management processes, to the extent 
performed as part of the external audit.

(c)  Reviewed, in consultation with management, the terms of engagement of external auditor for the statutory audit of the Group in 

consultancy and compliance review.
 
(d)  Met with the external auditors twice without the presence of any executive Board members and management staff on 26 February 

2016 and 23 November 2016. These sessions enabled an open discussion and ensure that the external auditors was not restricted in 
their scope of audit.

(e) Subsequent to FY2016, the Audit Committee carried out a review with the external auditors on the report of their audit FS2016 of 
Goldis and the accompanying management letter and response.

Risk Management

The Audit Committee assisted the Board in examining the adequacy and effectiveness of Goldis risk management system to ensure that a 
robust risk management is maintained. Based on periodic updates from the management and annual risk reports presented by the GIAD 
which shed insight on the areas of risk, likelihood, impact and management action on Goldis Group’s operating business and functional 
units, the Audit Committee was able to keep under review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management system as well as 
their risk portfolio, risk level and risk mitigation strategies.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT (cont’d)

Related Party transaction (“RPT”)/Recurrent Related Party Transaction (“RRPT”)

The Audit Committee had reviewed RRPT entered into by the Group, ensured that proper disclosures were made in accordance with MMLR, 

based on commercial viability and were therefore not deemed to be detrimental to the interest of minority shareholders and the monitoring 

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME

There was no allocation of options during the FY2016. The Employees’ Share Option Scheme had expired on 19 May 2012.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Audit Committee is assisted by the in-house GIAD in discharging its duties and responsibilities. The GIAD function is considered an 
integral part of the assurance framework and its primary mission is to provide assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk, 
control and governance framework of the Group. The purpose, authority and responsibility of the GIAD function as well as the nature of the 
assurance and consultancy activities provided by the department are articulated in the internal audit charter.

During the year, the GIAD conducted various internal audit engagements in accordance with the annual audit plan that is consistent with the 
goals of the Group. The GIAD evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of key controls in responding to the risks within the organisation, 
governance, operations and information systems. The GIAD also plays an active advisory role in risk analysis and control consultation.

The total cost incurred in managing the GIAD for the FY2016 was RM423,000.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Group Company

RM’000 RM’000

DIVIDENDS

  

RM’000

DIRECTORS' REPORT

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

SHARE CAPITAL

TREASURY SHARES

DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

In the Company

 Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each

1.1.2016 Additions Disposals 31.12.2016

Direct
Indirect*

Direct

Direct

Direct

Direct

Direct
Indirect*

Indirect*

In the Company

 Number of Redeemable Convertible Cumulative
 Preference Shares of RM0.01 each

1.1.2016 Additions Disposals 31.12.2016

Direct
Indirect*

Direct

Direct

Direct

Direct

Direct
Indirect*

Indirect*
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

In GTower Sdn. Bhd.

 Number of ordinary shares of RM1.00 each

1.1.2016 Additions Disposals 31.12.2016

Direct

Direct

Direct

In IGB Corporation Berhad

 Number of ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

1.1.2016 Additions Disposals 31.12.2016

Direct

Direct

Direct
Indirect*

In IGB Corporation Berhad

 Number of options over ordinary shares of RM0.50 each

1.1.2016 Granted Exercise 31.12.2016
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

In IGB Real Estate Investment Trust (“IGB REIT”)

 Number of units of RM1.00 each

1.1.2016 Additions Disposals 31.12.2016

Direct
Indirect*

Direct

Direct

Direct
Indirect*

Direct
Indirect*

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

debts; and



Annual Report  /  2016

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS POST REPORTING DATE

(a) Disposal of Renaissance Kuala Lumpur Hotel

(b) Proposed Acquisition of the Entire Equity Interest in IGB Corporation Berhad

AUDITORS

TAN LEI CHENG TAN BOON LEE
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Group  Company

Note  2016  2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

6

Other operating income 

 

INCOME STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Group  Company

2016  2015 2016  2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

ASSETS

Inventories

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Subsidiaries

Associates 

Concession receivables

Inventories

Concession receivables

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2016



Annual Report  /  2016 55

 Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Share premium

Treasury shares

Other reserves

LIABILITIES

Payables and contract liabilities

Payables and contract liabilities

Amount owing to subsidiaries

Amount owing to associates 4

44
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Attributable to owners of the parent

Group Note

Share
capital

(Note 30)

Share
premium
(Note 31)

Treasury
shares

(Note 32)

Redeemable
Convertible
Cumulative
Preference

Shares
(Note 30)

Other
reserves

(Note 34)
Retained
earnings Total

Non-
controlling

 interests
Total

equity

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Comprehensive income

year

Other comprehensive 
income

Total comprehensive 
income for the  
financial year

Transactions with owners

Convertible Cumulative 

ordinary shares

Dividend paid to ordinary 
shareholders

Dividends paid to  

interests

Changes in ownership 
interests in subsidiaries 
that do not result in a 

Total transactions with 
owners

  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Attributable to owners of the parent

Group Note

Share
capital

(Note 30)

Share
premium
(Note 31)

Treasury
shares

(Note 32)

Redeemable
Convertible
Cumulative
Preference

Shares
(Note 30)

Other
reserves

(Note 34)
Retained
earnings Total

Non-
controlling

 interests
Total

equity

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Comprehensive income

year

Other comprehensive 
income

Total comprehensive 
income for the  
financial year

Transactions with owners

Convertible Cumulative 

Options granted to 

subsidiary

Dividend paid to ordinary 
shareholders

controlling interests

Changes in ownership 
interests in 
subsidiaries that do 

control

Total transactions with 
owners
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Company Note

Share
capital

(Note 30)

Share
premium

 (Note 31)

Treasury
shares

 (Note 32)

Redeemable
Convertible
Cumulative
Preference

Shares
(Note 30)

Other
reserve

(Note 34)
Retained
earnings Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the 
financial year

Transactions with owners

Ordinary Shares

Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders

Total transactions with owners

Comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the 
financial year

Transactions with owners

Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders

Total transactions with owners

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Group  Company
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Dividends received
Interests received
Interests paid

 

546

associates

Interest received

subsidiary

 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Group  Company
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 

Deposit held with trustee
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A BASIS OF PREPARATION

 

  

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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A BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

   

B CONSOLIDATION
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B CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

losses are also eliminated
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B CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)
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B CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED)

C PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and machinery

5 years
 

D INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
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D INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

E INTANGIBLE ASSETS

available; and
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E INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

F BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

G IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
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H FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Concession receivables
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H FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
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H FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

  Assets carried at amortised cost

concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;
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H FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

 

I SERVICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

J LEASES
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J LEASES (CONTINUED)

K ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

L TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

M INVENTORIES
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M INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

N CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
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O CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

P SHARE CAPITAL

 

  

  Diluted earnings per share

Q TRADE PAYABLES



Annual Report  /  2016

R BORROWINGS AND BORROWING COSTS

S CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX
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S CURRENT AND DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

T EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

 

  Employee options
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T EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

  Employee options

U CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

V REVENUE RECOGNITION

  

and 
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V REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)
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V REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

  

Others

W FOREIGN CURRENCIES
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W FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)
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W FOREIGN CURRENCIES (CONTINUED)

X DEFERRED REVENUE

Y SEGMENT REPORTING

Z COMPOUND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

 

5

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

 

Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Net monetary assets denominated in 

 

54

5

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

 Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

  

 Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Note
Less than

 1 year

Between
1 and 2

 years

Between
2 and 3

 years
Over

3 years Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016

Payables and contract liabilities 

payables

Amounts owing to associates 4 4

2015 

Payables and contract liabilities 

payables

Amounts owing to associates



Annual Report  /  2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Note
Less than

 1 year

Between
1 and 2

 years

Between
2 and 3

 years
Over

3 years Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Company

2016

Payables and contract liabilities 

Amounts owing to subsidiaries

2015

Payables and contract liabilities 

Amounts owing to subsidiaries
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

 

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Group

Interest bearing liabilities

 

Interest bearing net debts

Company

Interest bearing liabilities

Interest bearing net debts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Available-
 for-sale

Assets at fair
value through
 profit or loss

Loans and
receivables Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016

Non-current

Concession receivables

Current

Concession receivables

Total

 

Other financial
liabilities at

amortised cost Total

RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016

Non-current

Payables and contract liabilities

Current

 

Amounts owing to associates 4 4

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Available-
 for-sale

Assets at fair
value through
 profit or loss

Loans and
receivables Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2015

Non-current

Concession receivables

Current

Concession receivables

Total

Other financial
liabilities at

amortised cost Total

RM’000 RM’000

Group

2015

Non-current

Payables and contract liabilities

Current

 

44 44

Amounts owing to associates

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Available-
 for-sale

Assets at fair
value through
 profit or loss

Loans and
receivables Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Company

2016

Non-current

Current

Total

  

Other financial
liabilities at

amortised cost Total

RM’000 RM’000

Company

2016

Non-current

Current

Amounts owing to subsidiaries

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Available-
 for-sale

Assets at fair
value through
 profit or loss

Loans and
receivables Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Company

2015

Non-current

Current

Total

  

Other financial
liabilities at

amortised cost Total

RM’000 RM’000

Company

2015

Non-current

Current

Amounts owing to subsidiaries

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

  

Group

2016  2015

RM’000 RM’000

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

 Company

2016  2015

RM’000 RM’000

Level 1

Level 2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 

4 SEGMENT REPORTING
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Property
investment

 - retail

Property
investment

- commercial
Property

development  Hotel Construction  Others  Group

RM’000  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Total segment revenue

Segment results

5

Other information:

Assets

Segment assets

Associates

 

Total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Total liabilities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

 

Property
investment

 - retail

Property
investment

- commercial
Property

development  Hotel Construction  Others  Group

RM’000  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

4

2015

Total segment revenue

Segment results
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

4 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

 

Property
investment

 - retail

Property
investment

- commercial
Property

development  Hotel Construction  Others  Group

RM’000  RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2015

Other information:

Assets

Segment assets

Associates

Total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Total liabilities

55 55

45
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

5 CHANGES IN GROUP STRUCTURE 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

6 REVENUE

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

arrangement

Investment income

Interest income on advances to subsidiaries

7 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit from operations is stated after charging:

sold
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

7 PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit from operations is stated after charging: 
(continued)

644 55

 

Quit rent and assessment

and crediting:

 

45 45

Advertising and promotional income

Storage leasing income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

8 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS COST
 

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

10 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

10 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS (CONTINUED)

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

11 TAXATION

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

11 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

% % % %

*

unabsorbed capital allowance

*

*

* *

*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Group

2016 2015

Group

2016 2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group
Freehold

 land
Leasehold

 land

Hotel
properties

(Note 13(a)) Buildings
Plant and

machinery

Furniture,
fixtures,

fittings and
equipment

Motor
vehicles

Capital
 work-in-
progress Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Cost

Additions

Disposals

 

Currency translation 

Accumulated depreciation

654

Disposals

 

Currency translation 

Accumulated impairment 
losses

6

Net book value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Group
Freehold

 land
Leasehold

 land

Hotel
properties

(Note 13(a)) Buildings
Plant and

machinery

Furniture,
fixtures,

fittings and
equipment

Motor
vehicles

Capital
 work-in-
progress Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2015

Cost

Additions

Disposals

Currency translation 

Accumulated depreciation

Disposals

Currency translation 

Accumulated impairment 
losses

Net book value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

    

Freehold
 land

Hotel
buildings

Plant and
machinery

Office
furniture,

fittings and
equipment Total

Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Cost

Additions

Disposals

Accumulated depreciation

Disposals

Net book value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Freehold
 land

Hotel
buildings

Plant and
machinery

Office
furniture,

fittings and
equipment Total

Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2015

Cost

Additions

Disposals

 

Accumulated depreciation

Disposals

 

Accumulated impairment losses

Net book value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

 Company

Furniture, fixtures, fittings 
and equipment

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Cost

Additions 6 45

Disposals

Accumulated depreciation

Disposals

Net book value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

14 INVENTORIES

 Group

Note 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Non-current

Current

Property development costs

Completed properties
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

14 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

Group

Note  At cost

At net
realisable

 value  Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Development costs

Development costs

Development costs

Development costs

Development costs

Development costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

14 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

 Group

 At cost

At net
realisable

 value  Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2015

Development costs

Development costs

Development costs

Development costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

14 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

Group

Note 2016 2015

 RM’000 RM’000

At cost

Accumulated costs charged to income statements

Accumulated costs charged to income statements

At cost

Accumulated costs charged to income statements 

Interest cost capitalised as property development costs 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

14 INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

Group

Note 2016 2015

 RM’000 RM’000

At cost

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Group

Land held
for future

development

Property
investment

 retail

Property
investment

commercial

Capital
work

in progress  Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Cost

Additions

 

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Group

Property
investment

 retail

Property
investment

 commercial
Capital work
 in progress  Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2015

Cost

Additions

 

Accumulated depreciation

Net book value

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Quit rent and assessment

 Fair value

Level
Valuation
technique

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Income approach

Commercial properties Income approach

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

15 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

Term rental

Other income

Outgoings

Capitalisation rate

properties;

16 LONG TERM PREPAID LEASE

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

At cost

Disposal

Accumulated amortisation

Current year amortisation
Disposal

Net book value
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group
Development

 costs License Goodwill Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Cost

Additions

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

2015

Cost

Additions

Accumulated amortisation

Net book value



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

 

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

GCity

2016 2015

Cost increase
Discount rate

 

2016 2015

Change in 
assumption

Impact on 
goodwill

Change in 
assumption

Impact on 
goodwill

GCity

Discount rate
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

18 BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
 

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Broodstocks

Cost

Additions 55

Disposal

Accumulated depreciation

Disposal

Net book value

19 SUBSIDIARIES

Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Investment in subsidiaries, at cost

Quoted ordinary shares

Advances to subsidiaries

Total



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

 Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Movement of impairment loss on investment in subsidiaries:
 

Charge during the year

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

*  

management solution 
system

Elements Integrative Integrated healthcare and 
wellness

Investment holding

 Dormant

 Investment holding

lending services to 
related companies

Property investment 
holding 

 

Investment holding and 
property development
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

 

computer and related 
products

Investment trading and 
investment holding

Steady Paramount Property investment 
holding

 Silver Sanctuary Property investment 
holding

 Investment holding

Held by Elements Integrative Health Sdn. Bhd.

health services

(formerly known 
as Elements Gym 
Sdn. Bhd.)

centre and gym

Elements Nutrients Pharmaceutical business 
and related products

Held by GoldChina Sdn. Bhd.

* Crest Spring  Singapore Investment holding

Held by Crest Spring Pte Ltd

* Crest Spring 
  

water and waste water  
treatment plants and 
related services

*
 

waste water treatment 
plant

 



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by Crest Spring (Shanghai) Co. Ltd.

*
 

Investment holding and 
consultancy services in 
water treatment

 
*

 

waste water treatment 
plant

*
 

Sewage 
Treatment  

 

waste water treatment 
plant

Held by Goldis Water Sdn. Bhd.

*  Singapore Investment holding

Held by Goldis Water Pte. Ltd.

*
 

waste water treatment 
plant

Held by G Fish (Asia) Sdn. Bhd.

Development  development and 
construction

management services

Held by Macro Lynx Sdn. Bhd.

 

computer and related 
products
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by Macro Lynx Sdn. Bhd. (continued)

computer and related 
products

computer and related 
products

Held by Triple Hallmark Sdn. Bhd. 

 
operations  

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries

 Property investment

Amandamai Dua Property development

Amandamai Satu 
 

(Under members’ 
Voluntary 
liquidation)

Property development

 Property development

Property development and 
property investment

*  
Islands

Investment holding

Atar Deras  Property development

* Auspicious Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (continued)

 Property development

* 4 Investment holding

 Property development

5
construction

 Property development

 services

Investment holding

Property investment

 Educational institution
 

(under members’ 
voluntary 
liquidation 
completed in 
2016)

Dormant

Property investment

Distinctive Ace  
6

Property investment and 
property development

Earning Edge  Investment holding

Eastwind Alliance Property Investment and 
property development
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (continued)

Ensignia 
Construction   

 

 Property development
 

*
Investments  

Singapore Investment holding

Properties  

 Property development

 Investment holding

 Property investment

services

Property investment

 
Investment holding

(under members’ 
voluntary 
liquidation 
completed in 
2016)

Dormant

services
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (continued)

 Property investment and 
management

 investment trust

Investment  
Trust 

trust

Concept 
Development  

Property development

Intercontinental 
Aviation Services 

 
(under members’ 
voluntary 
liquidation 
completed in 
2016) 

Dormant

Products  materials

Construction  
Investment holding

Property development

 
  

(under members’ 
voluntary 
liquidation)

Property development

 

(under 
members’ 
voluntary 
liquidation  
completed in 
2016) 

Dormant
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (continued)

4 

* Investment holding

 
4

Investment holding
 

 Investment holding
 

*  

 
service provider

Developments 
Property development

utilities

Enterprise  

service provider 

 
Property investment

Property Services services 
 

 
South Tower  

Property investment

Southpoint  
Property investment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (continued)

Property investment

Property investment

 
Property investment

 
 

 
and Event Services   

 

Nova Pesona  Property development

 Property development and 
investment

Property development

 Investment holding

*  
4

Singapore Investment holding

 Property holding

 
(under members’ 
voluntary 
liquidation 
completed in 
2016)

Dormant
 

 Property development and 
investment

 
Property development
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (continued)

Property management 
services

Prima Condominium Investment holding

Primanah Property Property development

Investment holding

 

 
 

Property development

Investment holding

 

Property investment
 

*  
services

Tanah Permata  
4

Developments 
services and investment 
holding

Property investment and 

 
*

 
Australia Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

2016  2015

Name

Country of
incorporation
and place
of business Nature of business

Effective
interest held
by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

Effective
interest held
 by the group

Effective
interest held

by non-
controlling

 interest

% % % %

Held by IGB Corporation Berhad and its subsidiaries (continued)

Property investment

*  
Islands

Investment holding
 

(under members’ 
voluntary 
liquidation)

Property investment

 Notes:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

 Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-controlling interest

 IGB Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Current

Assets

Total current net assets

Non-current

Assets

Net assets

 IGB Group

2016  2015

RM’000 RM’000

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

19 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

 Summarised financial information on a subsidiary with material non-controlling interests (continued)

 IGB Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Interest paid

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

At cost

Amounts owing by associates



Annual Report  /  2016

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Name of company
Nature of
business

Country of
incorporation

Group’s effective interest

2016 2015

% %

Investment holding

Investment holding

Ravencroft
Investments 
Incorporated

New
Commercial

 Investments 
Limited

 2016  2016

RM’000 RM’000

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Interest income

Summarised statement of financial position

Total current assets

Total current liabilities

Net assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Ravencroft
Investments 
Incorporated

New
Commercial 
Investments 

Limited

 2015  2015

RM’000 RM’000

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Interest income

Summarised statement of financial position

Total current assets

Total current liabilities

Net assets
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

 Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Ravencroft 
Investments 
Incorporated

New 
Commercial 
Investments 

Limited

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Name
Country of
incorporation Nature of business

 Group’s effective interest

2016 2015

% %

*  
 (under members’ 

voluntary liquidation completed in 
2016)

Dormant

* Australia Investment holding

*  

* 4 Property development

* Australia Property investment
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Name
Country of
incorporation Nature of business

 Group’s effective interest

2016 2015

% %

 
  

(under members’ voluntary 
liquidation)

 
Dormant

Property development and 
property investment

* 5 Dormant

* 6

Islands

* Property development

(under 
members’ voluntary liquidation)

Dormant

Property development

Property development

Property development

*
Islands

Investment holding

* New Commercial Investments  
Islands

Investment holding

6

* Thailand Investment holding

Property development and 
property investment

*
Islands

Investment holding

*  
5 (under members’ 

voluntary liquidation completed in 
2016)

Dormant

* 6  
Congo

Construction and hotel 
management

*  

*
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

20 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Name
Country of
incorporation Nature of business

 Group’s effective interest

2016 2015

% %

*  

*

* 6 Philippines

*

* Investment holding

 Notes:

21 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

At cost
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

21 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 

Name of company Nature of business
Country of
incorporation

 Group’s effective interest

2016 2015

% %

Property investment

Property development and 
construction

Thailand

Black Pearl
Limited

Crystal
 Property Asia

Company
Limited

2016 2016

RM’000 RM’000

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Summarised statement of financial position

Total current assets

Total current liabilities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

21 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 

Black Pearl
Limited

Crystal
 Property Asia

Company
Limited

2015 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Summarised statement of financial position

Total current assets

Total current liabilities

 Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Black Pearl 
Limited

Crystal 
Property Asia 

Company
Limited Total

 2016  2016 2016

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Amounts owing to corporate shareholders



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

21 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED) 

 Reconciliation of summarised financial information (continued)

Black Pearl
 Limited

Crystal
Property Asia 

Company
Limited Total

 2015  2015 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Amounts owing to corporate shareholders

Name
Country of
incorporation Nature of business

 Group’s effective interest

2016 2015

% %

* Property investment

* Property investment

* Thailand Property development and 
construction

 Notes:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

22 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current

Additions

Impaired

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

23 CONCESSION RECEIVABLES

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Current 

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

 

24 DEFERRED TAX 

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

24 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

income

properties

Shares
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

24 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

25 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

26 AMOUNTS OWING FROM/(TO) ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Amounts owing to associates
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

27 RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Trade receivables

Other receivables

Deposits

Prepayments

Accrued billing in relation to rental income

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

27 RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Above 6 months

 

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

27 RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

 

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

 

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

28 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

 

 Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

% % % %

29 ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

 Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

30 SHARE CAPITAL 
   

 Group and Company  Group and Company

2016 2015

Number of
shares Value

Number of
shares Value

‘000 RM‘000 ‘000 RM’000

Authorised

 

Issued and fully paid

31 SHARE PREMIUM

Group and Company

 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

31 SHARE PREMIUM (CONTINUED)

 

Company

 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

32 TREASURY SHARES

2016/2015
Number of shares

Total consideration 
paid/cost

(RM)

Average cost 
per share

(RM)

At 1 January/31 December

33 REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE CUMULATIVE PREFERENCE SHARES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

33 REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE CUMULATIVE PREFERENCE SHARES (CONTINUED)

 

 Group and Company

 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Converted into Ordinary shares

Current
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

34 OTHER RESERVES

Share 
option

reserve

Available-
for-sale
 reserve

Exchange
fluctuation

 reserve Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group
 
2016
 

2015

Share option reserve

the ESOS Scheme; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

34 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Share option reserve

 

IGB Group 

2015

 IGB Group

Exercise price
option (RM)

Number of
options

2016/2015
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

34 OTHER RESERVES (CONTINUED)

Available-
for-sale reserve

RM’000

Company
 
2016
 

2015

35 RETAINED EARNINGS

36 PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current
 

Current

Trade payables
Other payables

Accruals

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

36 PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

37 HIRE-PURCHASE AND FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Current

44
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

38 INTEREST BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
 

Group  Company

Note 2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current

Current

Total

 

 Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Revolving credits

Term loans

Medium Term Notes

Total
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

38 INTEREST BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Group Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

% % % %

Revolving credits

Term loans

Medium Term Notes

 
 Estimated fair values

 

 2016 2015

Carrying
 amount

Fair
value

Carrying
 amount

Fair
value

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Group

Term loans

Company
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

38 INTEREST BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Group

 Maturity profile Total
carrying 
amount<1 year 1-2 year 2-5 years

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016 

2015 

Company

 Maturity profile Total
carrying 
amount<1 year 1-2 year 2-5 years

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016 

2015 



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

38 INTEREST BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

continuing and has not been waived;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

38 INTEREST BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

 

    



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

38 INTEREST BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Company;

 
39 AMOUNTS OWING FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

40 DIVIDENDS

2016 2015

Gross
dividend

per share

Amount of
dividend,
net of tax

Gross
dividend

per share

Amount of
 dividend,
net of tax

% RM % RM

4

Ordinary shares

41 RENTALS RECEIVABLES UNDER NON-CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASE 
 

 

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

42 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

43 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 

Group Company

2016  2015 2016  2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

43 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Related party Relationship

 

 Notes:

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

43 SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Group

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

 Company

2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

44 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

 Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

Group

2015

RM’000

 

45 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS POST REPORTING DATE

46 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (cont’d)

47 DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND UNREALISED RETAINED PROFITS

Group  Company

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

 



TAN LEI CHENG TAN BOON LEE

LEONG KOK CHI

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

STATUTORY DECLARATION

Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our opinion

What we have audited

Basis for opinion

Independence and other ethical responsibilities

Our audit approach

Key audit matters

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

to the Members of Goldis Berhad
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the Key audit matter

Accounting for Property Development Activities

development costs on a sample basis by comparing to 

surveyors;

budgeted property development costs to assess whether 
the total estimated costs to completion has been properly 

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

OTHER REPORTING RESPONSIBILITIES

 
OTHER MATTERS

 
PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS SOO HOO KHOON YEAN

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountant
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LIST OF TOP TEN MAJOR PROPERTIES BY VALUE HELD BY GOLDIS GROUP

as at 31 December 2016

Location/Address Tenure

Age of 
Building 
(Years) Description/Existing use

Date of 
Acquisition/
Revaluation

Group Net Book 
Value As At  

31 Dec 2016
 RM’000

4 Proposed commercial 
development under 

5

6

hotel

Sydney
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ANALYSIS OF SHAREHOLDINGS

as at 20 March 2017

ORDINARY SHARES

#

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Range of Shareholdings No. of Shareholders %# No. of Shares Held %#

6

Total

THIRTY (30) LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS
 

No. Name No. of Shares Held %#

4
Exempt an for The HongKong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

5
Exempt an for Bank Julius Baer & Co. Ltd. (Singapore Bch)

6

Exempt an for DBS Bank Ltd
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No. Name No. of Shares Held %#

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

 Number of Shares Held 

Name Direct %# Indirect* *%#

* Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016.



Annual Report  /  2016

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY AND RELATED CORPORATION

The Company

 Number of Shares Held

Name Direct %# Indirect* *%#

IGB Corporation Berhad

 Number of Shares Held Options over 
Ordinary SharesName Direct % Indirect* *%

IGB Real Estate Investment Trust (‘IGB REIT’)

 Number of Units Held 

Name Direct % Indirect* *%

GTower Sdn Bhd

Number of Shares Held

Name Direct %

* Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016.



GOLDIS BERHAD (515802-U)

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE CUMULATIVE PREFERENCE SHARES (“RCPS”)
 

DISTRIBUTION OF RCPS HOLDINGS

Range of RCPS holdings No. of RCPS holders % No. of RCPS Held %

54
6

Total

THIRTY (30) LARGEST RCPS HOLDERS

No. Name No. of RCPS Held %

4

5
Exempt an for The HongKong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

6
Exempt an for Bank Julius Baer & Co. Ltd (Singapore Bch)

Exempt an for DBS Bank Ltd
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No. Name No. of RCPS Held %

Exempt an for Credit Suisse

DIRECTORS’ RCPS HOLDINGS 

 Number of RCPS Held

Name Direct % Indirect* *%

* Deemed interest pursuant to Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2016.
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PROXY FORM
 

 
  

 
      

 
      

 

 
    

 
  

 
      

Resolution

First Proxy Second Proxy

For Against For Against

Purchase its Own Shares

Dated this 

Notes:
1. Applicable to shares held through a nominee account. 

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two (2) proxies to attend and to vote in his stead. A proxy 

by each proxy. 

not more than two (2) proxies in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said 
securities account. 

shall be put to vote by poll. 

time appointed for holding the meeting.

CDS account no. 

CDS account no. of authorized nominee (1)

Percentage

Total



stamp

The Company Secretaries
Goldis Berhad 

1st fold here

2nd fold here




